YOTING MEMBERS

DAWN CHANG
DEPARTMENT OF LAND & NATURAL
RESOURCES

SHARON HURD
HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE &
BIOSECURITY

KATHLEEN HO, D.Env
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

PARWINDER GREWAL Ph.D.
UNIVERSITY OF HAWAI‘T

MARY ALICE EVANS
BUSINESS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT &

HAWAI‘I INVASIVE SPECIES COUNCIL TOURISM

DEXTER KISHIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

JOSH GREEN
GOVERNOR OF HAWATI

SYLVIA LUKE
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

AGENDA
FOR THE MEETING OF THE
HAWAI‘I INVASIVE SPECIES COUNCIL

DATE: Wednesday, November 26, 2025

TIME: 1:00 PM

PLACE: In-person — DLNR Board Room, Rm 132; Kalanimoku Building 1151
Punchbowl St, Honolulu HI 96813 & Online Via Zoom Meeting ID: 875
5992 3498

Z0OOM LINK:

https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/87559923498?pwd =3CsdjftFKyWrang6WaloXcRaD3bawQ.1
Meeting ID: 875 5992 3498
Passcode: 939801

This Council meeting will be held using interactive conference technology under section 92-3.7,
Haw. Rev. Stat. Council members, staff, testifiers and the public can choose to participate on
person, online via Zoom, or by telephone. The public may also view the live meeting via its live
stream at: https://youtube.com/live/209¢jz73V Gg?teature=share

To Provide Written Testimony

We encourage interested persons to submit written testimony in advance of the meeting, which
will be distributed to Council members prior to the meeting and allow a timely review. Please
submit written testimony via email to: jack.f.reef.researcher@hawaii.gov.

Written testimonies can also be mailed to: 1151 Punchbowl Street. Rm 325 Honolulu HI 96813.
Written testimonies may be posted upon the Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council Meeting website;
as a precaution, please be mindful with any personal information prior to submitting unless you
intend it to be shared. Late testimony will be retained as part of the record and distributed to
Council members as soon as practicable, but we cannot ensure Council members will receive it
in sufficient time to review prior to any decision-making.

To Provide In-Person Oral Testimony (masks are highly encouraged)
Attend in-person at: DLNR Board Room, Rm 132; Kalanimoku Building 1151 Punchbowl St,
Honolulu HI 96813

To Provide Testimony by Telephone
On the day of the meeting at the start of the agenda item you wish to testify on, dial: +1 (253)
205-0468 (Zoom); input the Meeting ID: 875 5992 3498 and follow the prompts.




To Provide Video/Zoom Testimony

Send your request in a timely manner to jack.f.reef.researcher@hawaii.gov with your
information, email address, and the agenda item you wish to testify on. Once your request has
been received, you will receive a confirmation email with pertinent information. You may testify
without signing up in advance.

We kindly ask that all oral/video testimony be limited to not more than three (3) minutes. We ask
that you identify yourself and any affiliation before speaking, but you can choose not to do so.

Join Zoom Meeting

https://usO6web.zoom.us/j/87559923498?pwd =3CsdjftFKyWrgng6WaloXcRaD3bawQ.1
Meeting ID: 875 5992 3498

Passcode: 939801

Special Accommodations
If you need auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to disability, please contact Jack,

the Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council Planner, at 808-587-0166 or
jack.f.reef.researcher@hawaii.gov as soon as possible. Requests made as early as possible have a
greater likelihood of being fulfilled. Upon request, this agenda and other materials are available
in alternate/accessible forms.

The Council may go into Executive Session pursuant to Section 92-5(a) (4), Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, in order to consult with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Council’s
powers, duties, privileges, immunities and liabilities.

For information, contact:
HISC Support staff:
1151 Punchbowl St, #325, Honolulu, HI 96813 (808) 587-0166; Fax: (808) 587-0160

Parick Chee, Program Manager: patrick.c.chee@hawaii.gov

Elizabeth Speith, 643pest.org Report Facilitator: speith@hawaii.edu

Chuck Chimera, Weed Risk Assessment Specialist: chimera@hawaii.edu

Jack Reef, Planner: jack.f.reef.researcher@hawaii.gov

Mason Russo, Research & Projects Coordinator: mason.h.russo.researcher@hawaii.gov

AGENDA

1. Call to order
2. Introductions of Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council Members
3. Approval of minutes from May 28, 2025 Meeting (deferred at the last meeting due to lack

of quorum of voting members that were present at the May 28" meeting) & September
29, 2025 meeting.



4. Updates from Council members and Department representatives on 2026 legislative
requests & policies related to biosecurity and invasive species. The Item is only a status
update.

5. Update on the Implementation of the Interagency MOU for High Priority Pests.
Presentation from Patrick Chee, Hawaii Invasive Species Council. The Item is only a
status update.

6. Submittal Requesting the Council to provide guidance to the legislature on the transfer of
the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Hawaii Department of Agriculture &
Biosecurity by January 1, 2030 under ACT 236, Section 7.

7. Adjournment

The Council may go into Executive Session pursuant to Section 92-5(a) (4), Hawai‘i Revised
Statutes, in order to consult with its attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Council’s
powers, duties, privileges, immunities and liabilities.

For information, contact:
HISC Support staff:
1151 Punchbowl St, #325, Honolulu, HI 96813; (808) 587-0166; Fax: (808) 587-0160

Patrick Chee, Program Manager: patrick.c.chee@hawaii.gov

Elizabeth Speith, 643pest.org Report Facilitator: speith@hawaii.edu

Chuck Chimera, Weed Risk Assessment Specialist: chimera@hawaii.edu

Jack Reef, Planner: jack.f.reef.researcher@hawaii.gov

Mason Russo, Research & Projects Coordinator: mason.h.russo.researcher@hawaii.gov




YOTING MEMBERS

DAWN CHANG
DEPARTMENT OF LAND & NATURAL
RESOURCES

SHARON HURD
HAWAII DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

KATHLEEN HO, D.Env
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

PARWINDER GREWAL.
UNIVERSITY OF HAWAI‘L

MARY ALICE EVANS

JOSH GREEN
GOVERNOR OF HAWAII

SYLVIA LUKE
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

HAWAII INVASIVE SPECIES COUNCIL BUSINESS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT &
1151 PUNCHBOWL ST, #325 TOURISM
HONOLULU’ HAWAIL 96813 DEPARTM]];E‘I]?I}[V(I)? ?‘gl\l;‘gli\(l)RTATION
DRAFT MEETING NOTES

Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council
May 28, 2025; 9:00 AM
Hawai‘i Department of Land and Natural Resources, Board Room (Rm 132) 1151
Punchbowl St, Honolulu, HI, 96813

Per Hawaii Sunshine Law guidelines, this meeting was hybrid with attendees
participating virtually through a Zoom link provided by HISC Support Staff or through the
HISC YouTube channel or in-person at the DLNR Board Room in the Kalanimoku
Building in Honolulu, HI. Council members, legislative representatives, and HISC
Resources Working Group members were provided with a Zoom link. Members of the
public were able to view the meeting through the HISC YouTube Channel. A recording of

the meeting can be found here: https://youtube.com/@hawaiiinvsivespeciescouncil/featured

1. Call to order
e Chair Hurd called the meeting to order.

2. Introductions of Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council Members
List of Attendees:
e Council Voting Members:
o Dawn Chang, Co-Chair (Department of Land and Natural Resources
[DLNR]);
Sharon Hurd, Co-Chair, Department of Agriculture (HDOA)];
Mary Alice Evans (Department of Economic Development and Tourism);
Dexter Kishida for Ed Sniffen — (Department of Transportation);
Parwinder Grewal (University of Hawaii [UH]); and
o Matt Kurano for Kathleen Ho (Department of Health)
e [Legislative Non-Voting Members:
o Representative Kristin Kahaloa (District 6)
o Member Evslin, (District 16)
o Senator Lynn Decoite (District 7)
o For Senator Gabbard — Meg Turner (District 21)
o Rep Marten (District 51)
e Other Legislators: None.
e Support Staft:
o Chelsea Arnott (DLNR/HISC), Mason Russo (HISC), Elizabeth Speith,
Jack Reef (HISC). Jonathan Ho (HDOA).
e Other Attendees (in-person and online):

O O O O



Christy Martin (CGAPS), Erin Bishop (OISC), Michelle Montgomery
(HAL), Kiane Prietto (BIISC), Channy Kanaha (BIISC), Kanehi Lopez
(BIISC), Thomas Griego (public), Danica Swenson (Attorney General),
Nate Dube (OISC), Franny Brewer (BIISC), Patrick Chee, Serene. Seta
Malyfan? (Senate)

3. Approval of minutes from March 20, 2025, Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council
Meeting

e Chair Chang moved to approve the draft minutes, which was approved by the
Council.

4. Update to HISC members on House Bill No. 427, Relating to Biosecurity from
HISC Program Support. Link to the Hawai‘i State Legislature: HB 427, CD1 —
Relating to Biosecurity.

e Chelsea Arnott provided a briefing which included a powerpoint presentation.
e HB 427 passed the legislature and is awaiting Governor approval, and provisions
of the bill are as follows:

1. Adds “biosecurity” to HDOA’s current name.

ii. Establishes a Deputy Chairperson of Biosecurity by 1/1/27

iii. Requires the development of “Pest Dashboard” by 1/1/25

iv. Appropriates funding for FY 26 and FY 27 to: Hawaii Ant Lab ($500k);

CRB Response ($500K); and HISC ($4.25M).
v. Transfers administration of HISC to HDOA 1/1/2030.

e Chair Hurd said there are 23 action items regarding this bill.

5. Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council Review and Recommendations relating to
Fiscal Year 2026 Funding Process
a. Presentation by HISC Program Manager, Chelsea Arnott: Overview of the
HISC Funding Process & Recommendations from the HISC Resources
Working Group for the Fiscal Year 2026 Funding Process
b. Discussion and Recommendations by the Hawaii Invasive Species Council
members on changes, improvements, and/or issues to address for the Fiscal
Year 2026 HISC Funding Process. HISC members may vote on the matter and
direct the HISC Resources Working Group to incorporate any approved items.

e Chelsea provided an overview of the funding process so the HISC Council can
make informed decisions.
e Since 2005 HISC has received funding to:
i. Expand agency capacity to work on priority issues;
ii. Fill gaps between agencies; and
iii. Advance our collective knowledge through research and development of
new tools and technology.

e The pending funding increase would the first in five years.



HISC tracks its annual funding awards, which includes many of the same
agencies over the years including the island invasive species committees (ISC).
HISC funding is directed towards: Prevention, Control, Research, and Outreach.
Chelsea noted that last year’s funding requests for “research” was significantly
less than previous years.
Funding almost never fully funds a request as HISC does not have enough funds.
If approved, HB 427 funds would be targeted towards the following:
i. $1.75M towards the ISCs;

ii. $864.5K for research;

iii. $300K for biocontrol;

iv. $300K for HISC staffing and new positions in grant management and data

management; and
v. $525k for interagency monitoring for high impact pests.
Chelsea said Hawaii leans on federal agencies for biosecurity efforts.

i. Inresponse to Senator Decoite Chelsea advised that funding cuts are not
yet known regarding federal funding for biocontrol. In addition, Chelsea
advised that HISC’s Ports-of-Entry Monitoring program helped detect
Coconut Rhinoceros Beetle near the Kona airport. Senator Decoite stated
she had referred inquiries to HISC to ensure education/outreach messaging
is consistent. Chelsea advised that the ISCs are conducting outreach and
education across the State.

ii. Chair Chang said DLNR is working with US Fish & Wildlife to monitor
the expected federal funding cuts, but the details of the cuts are unknown.
Cuts will happen, just not sure how the amount. Chair Hurd said they are
readying for impending cuts.

Chelsea continued the presentation and described the HISC funding process. The
process includes the release of an RFP, and evaluations of those proposals by the
Working Resource Group. RWG then develops a recommendations in
communication with the applicants ensuring a transparent process.

i. Chair Hurd asked why is funding only for government agencies as a wider
net of eligibility could lead to improved efforts. After lengthy discussion
between the members and a RWG member (Christy Martin), Chelsea
advised that they will work with the Attorney General’s office and Budget
staff, always been here to fund government agencies to fund gaps in
service.

1. Chair Chang said Grants-In-Aid may be available.

2. Chelsea in response to questions from Senator Decoite stated that:
a. The RFP announcement is made through the listserve;
b. Final reports from awardees are posted on the HISC

website to track usage of awards; and

c. Axis Deer management could be the focus of an award.

3. Partnerships can be formed with government entities so that non-

governmental organizations could be eligible for funding.



e Representative Kahaloa asked about the timeline for the RFP relative
to the Governor’s pending approval of HB 427 and the new $4.25M
funding for HISC.

o Chelsea said release of the RFP is pending the Governor’s
decision. RFP release likely to occur in July.

o After discussion by the HISC Council, Chelsea stated they
could review the funding process and timeline to release the
RFP which could involve two RFPs (one for the current
funding and the second RFP for new funding. Chelsea advised
that if two RFPs occur, HISC will only need one meeting to
approve the RWG funding recommendations.

o The Council also discussed HB 427 provisions relating to
administering the funds in the next two fiscal years.

The meeting recessed to prepare for item #6.

6. Presentation of 2025 Hawai‘i Invasive Species Awareness Month (HISAM) Award
Recipients. More information on each recipient can be found at
https://dInr.hawaii.gov/hisc/news/hisam-2025-awardees/.

e Chair Hurd at reconvened the meeting at 10:17am.

e Chair Chang welcomed everyone and described HISAM and this year’s theme
“From Mauka to Makai.” Chair Chang stated we are here to celebrate the honorees
for their accomplishments and malama which inspires everyone.

e Chair Hurd stated that HISAM helps educate and celebrate individuals, business,
and organizations to address invasive species. HISAM awards honorees in four
categories: business; community hero; greatest hit and Island MVP.

The Awardees are as follows:

Greatest Hit - Trenton Yasui (Plant Quarantine Inspector V, Invertebrate and Aquatic Biota
Specialist, Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture)

Trenton Yasui was recognized with the Greatest Hit award for his rapid and professional
response to a 643pest.org report involving a restricted aquatic species. Despite the report
coming in on a weekend, Trenton, and two state investigators, quickly investigated, confiscated
the prohibited animal within days, and followed up directly with the community member who
submitted the report. His action, with support from the Hawai‘i Department of the Attorney
General, helped prevent the potential spread of an invasive species listed under HDOA’s
Prohibited Animals, while also leaving a lasting positive impression through courtesy and
communication.(Jonathan Ho accepted the award on Trenton’s behalf).

Business Leader - Aloha Termite and Pest Control

Award Presented by Member Evans: Aloha Termite and Pest Control (ATPC) was honored for
going above and beyond to support community-based invasive species control. After receiving
comprehensive training from the Hawai‘i Ant Lab, ATPC volunteered to treat two residential
Little Fire Ant (LFA) infestations — covering 35 properties — completely free of charge.




Working closely with HAL, ATPC followed detailed best practices, helped navigate sensitive
community dynamics, and contributed to what are now two monitored sites on track for
eradication.

Their leadership demonstrates how the private sector can play a critical role in invasive species
management.

Community Hero - Haleakala.Ranch

Award presented by Chair Chang with remarks from Senator Decoite: Haleakala Ranch
received the Community Hero award for its steadfast dedication to both agriculture and
conservation. The ranch plays an active role in protecting rangelands and native ecosystems
from invasive species while producing local food and stewarding large open spaces on Maui.
As a partner of the East Maui Watershed Partnership (EMWP) and the Uhiwai o Haleakala,
They demonstrate commitment to invasive species response and protection through land
management and support for the efforts of the Maui Invasive Species Committee (MISC) in
eliminating pampas grass. Their conservation program reflects a long-term vision for
sustainable land use rooted in kuleana, collaboration, and cultural awareness.

O‘ahu MVP - Thomas Griego (Lanikai community volunteer)

Award Presented by Erin Bishop from O’ahu Invasive Species Committee on behalf of Rep.
Marten: Thomas Griego is recognized as the O‘ahu MVP for his dedication to Little Fire Ant
eradication efforts in Lanikai. As a committed community volunteer, Tom attended every
treatment over a year-long campaign, working closely with the O‘ahu Invasive Species
Committee (OISC) and Hawai‘i Ant Lab. His deep knowledge of the area, strong relationships
with neighbors, and willingness to lead by example helped foster trust and ensure access to
over 80 properties across multiple sites.

Tom’s consistency and hard work were key to moving these sites into the monitoring phase—
an important milestone in LFA response on O‘ahu.

“Tom’s knowledge and experience of the treatments allowed us to maximize the efforts of so
many people and agencies throughout this year-long effort... and it paid off! Lanikai 2, 3, & 5
are now in monitoring phase. Mahalo nui loa, Tom!” — OISC

Maui Nui MVP - Mike Opgenorth (Director, Kahanu Garden and Preserve, National Tropical
Botanical Garden)

Award Presented by Senator Decoite: Mike Opgenorth was recognized as the Maui Nui MVP
for his leadership in conservation, outreach, and invasive species response in East Maui.

As Director of Kahanu Garden in Hana, he has expanded native plant restoration, stewarded
Pi‘ilanihale Heiau, and built strong community partnerships. Opgenorth has played a key role
in early detection and public education around Little Fire Ants, Coconut Rhinoceros Beetle,
and Banana Bunchy Top Virus, acting quickly to share information and support control efforts.
His work helps protect East Maui’s biodiversity, agriculture, and cultural heritage.

Hawai‘i Island MVP - Kiane Prietto (teacher at Kanu o ka ‘Aina)

Award presented by Rep. Kahaloa: Kiane Prietto is being recognized as the Hawai ‘i Island
MVP for her outstanding dedication to invasive species education and community outreach. As



a kumu at Kanu o ka ‘Aina, she integrates invasive species topics into her curriculum through
project-based learning, empowering her haumana with hands-on experiences in conservation
and biodiversity monitoring.

Through her participation in the BIORETS REACHES summer program under Dr. Norine
Yeung, Kumu Kiane gained expertise in native and invasive snail research. She brought that
‘ike back to her classroom by guiding student-led biodiversity surveys and fostering a deeper
pilina between students and ‘aina.

Her leadership extends beyond the classroom. After discovering Little Fire Ants (LFA) in her
neighborhood, she initiated a social media campaign to raise awareness and mobilize her
community to take action. Kumu Kiane exemplifies innovation, kuleana, and a deep
commitment to protecting Hawai‘i’s native ecosystems.

Kaua‘i MVP - Work It Out Kaua‘i (Jenny and Jasmine Kaohelauli‘i)
Their award was presented by Rep. Evslin: Work It Out Kaua‘i (WIO), led by sisters Jenny
and Jasmine Kaohelauli‘i, has earned the Kaua i MVP award for their creative and sustained
commitment to invasive species outreach through fashion, media, and community engagement.
For the past three years, their “Save the Natives, Stop the Invasives” campaign has brought
attention to the threats invasive species pose to Kaua‘i’s unique ecosystems. Using their
platform in fashion and design, WIO has reached broader and more diverse audiences by
blending storytelling, style, and science in ways that resonate across generations.
In addition to their online campaign, WIO has:

e Hosted community outreach events

e Collaborated with content creators who passionately support KISC’s efforts

e Continued to innovate outreach strategies that elevate public awareness and inspire

action

Through their work, WIO reminds us that conservation messaging can be both impactful and
beautiful — and that everyone has a role to play in protecting our ‘aina.

e Chair Chang reiterated congratulations to all honorees who have helped the
environment.

e Chelsea described the logistics of the upcoming HISAM Award ceremony with the
Governor and luncheon to be hosted by Rep. Kahaloa.

7. Public Comments
Kevin Andrews stated that he had submitted a CRB response plan and stands ready to assist in
any way possible.

Chair Chang thanked everyone for their work.

8. Adjournment 10:45am.



DRAFT MEETING NOTES

Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council

e Approval of minutes from September 29, 2025 meeting

- This item was deferred as a result of no quorum of members who had been in attendance.

5. Submittal 1: Requesting Council approval for the Department of Land & Natural
Resources, as the administrative host for the HISC, to proceed with a new organizational
structure for the HISC Program Support. Submittal presented by Chelsea Arnott, HISC
Program Manager.

- Chelsea described the organizational structure of HISC;

- Chelsea advised that her position description does not cover all of the HISC duties needed to
successfully perform the job

- This submittal would create a HISC “Executive Director” that had different duties than the
duties of the position she currently holds.

- The organizational change can happen internally with the positions added by the legislature

- In response to a question from Chair Chang, Rep. Kahaloa confirmed that funding for HISC
would go through DAB in 2027, and that the DAB Deputy of Biosecurity would also be
established in 2027. The steps to revert funding back to DLNR in the years prior to 2030 is
unknown.

- Chair Chang stated that the legislature will need to establish the Executive Director position
because DLNR intends to keep the invasive species position Chelsea currently holds -

Fadckadakx. Mary Alice Evans asked if the new statute language transferring HISC can ensure
normal duties and powers of the HISC Ex Board such as entering into contracts. Rep Kahaloa
said there are many challenges at this time and that HISC is not detached. In response to
Member Evans’ comment, would the legislature want to create a detached HISC and then
undetach (sunset) it again in 20307

kadckkAxkx. Chelsea advised that the language in ACT 236 changes administrative role from
DLNR to DAB, its not embedded into a department. Rep. Kahaloa said that clarification is
needed to determine if HISC is transferred as independent or attached.



- Mary Alice Evans said some matters currently go to DLNR Board. Perhaps it makes sense to
ensure HISC continues to have the powers it was originally given in statute during the period
before its transferred to DAB in 2030 if they do not have them.

‘Kahaloa advised that substantial change will happen in the coming year, but that the HISC
Council can make a recommendation, perhaps in bill form to be introduced in the coming
legislative session. Otherwise, the legislature will make it decision on its own.

- Chair Chang said Forestry & Wildlife can currently act quickly (fo urgent matters) because of
its delegated authority from the Board to the Chair/Administration. Since the. HISC board
moves quarterly, how can it be ensured that HISC can respond quickly to invasive species risk.

- At the conclusion of the discussion Mary Alice Evans moved to approve the item.
- Dexter and Phyllis Shimabukuro Geiser
i. Item Passed unanimously

6. Presentation on the Fiscal Year 2026 HISC Funding Process and Recommended Budget
by the HISC Resources Working Group Members. a. Funding Process & Considerations
from the HISC Resources Working Group for the drafting the Fiscal Year 2026 HISC
Budget presented by Chelsea Arnott, HISC Program Manager (See submittal 2,
background and discussion sections) b. HISC FY26 Recommended Awards presented by
Matt Kurano, Administrator for HDOH Environmental Health Services (See Submittal 2
Attachment 1) & Chelsea Arnott, HISC Program Manager.

- Chelsea introduced the item along with Mason Russo of HISC.

- The presentation included the funding Process, a summary of input from the HISC Resources
Working Group (RWG), and the actual recommended funding awards

i. Funding supports interagency process, fills gaps and mandates, advances knowledge

ii. HISC has funding priorities that guide how applications are scored, including the
HISC/CGPAS joint biosecurity plan.

iii. The funding award process lasts from June through September.
iv. Resource Working Group members are critical to identifying needs;

v. HISC only funds governmental agencies (federal state counties and public universities) Private
contractors are not eligible at this time, but it has been considered.

vi. Projects that leverage funding have an improved score;



vii. Applications scoring below a pre-determined threshold will not receive funding.
viii. Total requests $12.3M compared to $8+M last year
ix. Chelsea detailed the funds available this year $5,661,958.62, last year just over $4M.

x. Chelsea said she does not know why there is a 20% reduction from the State, but that
supplemental funds almost equal this reduction.

xi. The HISC Council met in May to provide guidance to the RWG on how the funds should be
awarded, including research, biocontrol, ISC funding, POEM, and HISC capacity

xii. 54 applications were received this year, many more than last year, including many more
research proposals this year. Applications were considered in larger funding categories
(programmatic requests, Project requests, biocontrol requests, additional considerations for
coqui.

xiii. 50 scored high enough to receive funding: 14programmatic 32 research and 4 biocontrol
xiv. 4 were removed as unviable.

xv. It was decided that the ISCs would not receive less than last year. Funds from ACT 236
were considered separate from the scoring process.

xvi. Research proposals were limited to $200M
xvii. The RWG meeting lasted 6 hours in order to give each proposal equal consideration.

Xviii. After all of the awards were programmed, $106K was remaining. This amount was
reprogrammed for HISC emergency response funding to be used if needed later in the calendar
year.

- A summary of the individual 50 awarded applications was discussed. Each project and its
proposed funding award is listed in the Submittal

- In response to a comment from Chair Chang, Chelsea detailed that a detailed application
proposal is used to inform the RWGs scoring and funding award. Chair Chang underscored that
there is criteria to award funds, it is not arbitray. which is based off a detailed application and
proposal.

Chelsea stated, in response to a question from Chair Chang, that awardees from prior years have
to submit a report with deliverables, and that these reports are a resource for RWG members
during the scoring process.



- Rep Marten asked about scoring and funding distribution. In response, Chelsea stated that the
HISC awards have a “formula” to determine funding. Generally programmatic requests score
higher, but there was an intent to fund research proposals which is greatly needed to address
coqui and little fire ant.

- Rep Kahaloa asked if consideration was given to the fact that the federal government was
cutting UH funding and many of the applicants were federal entities. In response, Christy Martin
and RWG member advised the federal agencies are one the few who can conduct biocontrol
programs valuable to Hawaii. In other words, HISC funding helps the federal government
execute its mandate to the State.

Rep Kahaloa said be prepared for a response to legislators on why this funding to federal entities
is being granted while federal funds are being cut to the State.

Also in response to Rep Kahaloa, Mason Russo with HISC/RWG stated that some of the
proposals are specific to state priorities.

- Mason Russo continued the presentation detailing the projects individually

- Chelsea, Chair Chang and Phyllis Shimabukuro Geiser acknowledged the new collaboration
between the UH engineering department and invasive species management.

- Chair Chang and Rep Marten were informed that item #30 to trap CRB would occur on O’ahu

- Chair Chang, requested that next year’s presentation list highest scoring/highest funding
awards, be listed first. Reverse the current presentation.

6. Submittal 2: Requesting approval of the Fiscal Year 2026 Hawai‘i Invasive Species
Council budget

1. Chair Chang read the recommendation Evans Moved Parwinder replacement 2nd

il. Chair Chang asked that future submittals include 1) Linked reports and 2) Reports from
Project outcomes

7. Public Comments

- JC Watson TNR - Thanked HISC for supporting projects. Including the $300k for Biocontrol.
Additionally, there are 3 biocontrol resources pending releases to address clidemia, tibochina and
miconia. The commenter urged DAB to expedite the permitting of the release of those three
biocontrol as it would be a game changed for managers. In response to chair chang JC said
critical watershed are lost daily without these biocontrol being deployed.



- Teya Penniman (MISC) thanked HISC for the consideration, extended accolades to Chelsea,
and thanked the legislature for additional funding to ISCs, and for HISC’s funding flexibility.
Chair Chang recognized DOFAW help with funding

8. Adjournment

- Chelsea stated that the HISC will meet in November to discuss the upcoming legislative session
and to make recommendations if desired, including on the pending transfer of HISC to DAB.

i. Chelsea’s official last day is 10/31, and there may be a gap until her position is filled. Patrick
Chee will serve as the interim coordinator, including regarding legislative session and
procurements.

2:55pm



VYOTING MEMBERS

DAWN CHANG
DEPARTMENT OF LAND and NATURAL RESOURCES

SHARON HURD
DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE and BIOSECURITY

KATHLEEN HO, D.Env
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

PARWINDER GREWAL, Ph.D.
UNIVERSITY OF HAWATI‘T

MARY ALICE EVANS
BUSINESS, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT and

HAWAII INVASIVE SPECIES COUNCIL TOURISM
1151 PUNCHBOWL ST, #325 DEXTER KISHIDA
HONOLULU, HAWAII 96813 DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

JOSH GREEN
GOVERNOR OF HAW AIl

SYLVIA LUKE
LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

November 26, 2025

SUBMITTAL
TO: Hawai'i Invasive Species Council
State of Hawai'i

FROM: Dawn N.S. Chang
Co-Chair, Hawaii Invasive Species Council

SUBJECT: Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive
Species Council to the Legislature on transferring administration of the
Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the
Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity per Act 236, Part Vil and VIII.

Background:
The Hawai‘i Invasive Species Council (HISC; Council) was created in 2003 by the State
Legislature under Chapter 194 of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS).

§194-2 Establishment of council; duties. (a) There is established the invasive
species council for the special purpose of providing policy-level direction,
coordination, and planning among state departments, federal agencies, and
international and local initiatives for the control and eradication of harmful invasive
species infestations throughout the State and for preventing the introduction of other
invasive species that may be potentially harmful.

HISC was created in response to a 2002 Legislative Reference Bureau study that
identified significantgaps in managing invasive species throughoutthe state, includinga
lack of coordination, funding, and resource allocation. The goal was to form a cabinet-
level council to offer policy leadership across agencies, enhancing prevention, early
detection, rapid response, control, research, outreach, and coordination efforts related
to invasive species. The HISC voting membership includes the chair, director, or a
designee from the Hawai‘i Departments of Land and Natural Resources, Agriculture and
Biosecurity, Health, Business, Economic Development and Tourism, Transportation,
and the University of Hawai‘i.

As outlined in section 194-2 HRS (Attachment A), the Department of Land and Natural
Resources (DLNR) has served as the administrative host to the HISC since its
inception, providing administrative and staff support through the Division of Forestry and
Wildlife’s Invasive Species Program.



Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Legislature
on transferring administration of the Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the
Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity

In June 2025, Governor Josh Green signed Act 236 into law, which, among other
provisions, renames the Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture to the Department of
Agriculture and Biosecurity (DAB) and the Hawai‘i Board of Agriculture to the Board of
Agriculture and Biosecurity (BAB), effective July 1, 2025. The Act also transfers the
administration of the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to DAB beginning January 1,
2030. The Act allocates $4.25 million to HISC through DLNR for FY2026 and another
$4.25 million directly to HISC via DAB for FY2027. Sections of Act 236 are included
below, and the full text is provided as Attachment B.

Act 236 Part VII, Section 39, states that “All rights, powers, functions, and duties of the
Hawaii invasive species council are transferred from the Department of Land and
Natural Resources to the Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity.”

The Act states that “all officers and employees whose functions are transferred by this
Act shall be transferred with their functions and shall continue to perform their regular
duties upon their transfer.” However, the HISC program was never staffed and has
relied instead on the DLNR Division of Forestry and Wildlife’s Invasive Species Program
to provide personnel support, specifically the wildlife biologist position assigned to
coordinate the program. Since that program predates HISC and is essential to DLNR's
efforts in prevention, control, and management of invasive species within natural
resources management, DAB will need to assign personnel to oversee the HISC once it
is transferred.

Discussion:

At the September 29, 2025, HISC meeting, Councilmember Representative Kahaloa
informed the Council’s voting members that the Legislature would be considering
biosecurity issues and likely propose changes during the upcoming 2026 legislative
session related to biosecurity and the transfer of HISC to the newly named DAB. She
also recommended that the HISC should submit recommendations to the Legislature
before the upcoming session to help guide its decisions on HISC’s operations.

The HISC has made significant progress over the past 22 years. It has established vital
programs such as 643-PEST.org to support pest hotline reporting, the Hawaii Pacific
Weed Risk Assessment, which helps nurseries, managers, and communities choose
appropriate plants, and the Port of Entry Monitoring Program, responsible for detecting
the Coconut Rhinoceros Beetle at Kona Airport and coordinating multi-agency rapid
responses. It also offers policy guidance in partnership with state legislators. Since its
inception, more than 500 invasive species projects have been supported to strengthen
efforts in pre-border, border, and post-border biosecurity. HISC must remain a strong
organization as it transitions to being managed by the Department of Agriculture and
Biosecurity.

The following recommendations are for HISC’s review and consideration and, if
approved, will be included in a report to the Legislature regarding the transfer of HISC's
administration from DLNR to DAB, effective January 2030.



Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Legislature
on transferring administration of the Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the
Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity

Issues for consideration:

1.

HISC Administration: HISC should remain a cabinet-level, interagency council as
it transfers to administrative support by DAB.

Staffing Transition Plan: Since the Division of Forestry and Wildlife staff currently
managing HISC will stay with the Division’s Invasive Species Program, DAB
should create a plan to identify which positions will take on these roles before the
transfer to ensure a smooth transition. However, until the effective date of the
HISC transfer from DLNR to DAB, DLNR will continue to staff HISC subject to
continued funding.

HISC Programs Transition: The Council will create transition plans forthe HISC
coordinated programs and staff—643PEST.org, Ports of Entry Monitoring
(PoEM), and the Hawaii Weed Risk Assessment (HWRA)—to ensure these
essential functions are preserved during the move from DLNR to DAB.

Funding: For Fiscal Year 2026, the Legislature appropriated $4.25 million for the
operation of HISC to be expended by the DLNR. For Fiscal Year 2027, the
Legislature appropriated the same amount to be added to the DAB budget.
HISC recommends that the Legislature either 1) change the appropriation for
Fiscal Year 2027 to go to DLNR, because HISC will still be within DLNR until
January 2030, or 2) come to an agreement that the money will be journal
vouchered to DLNR from DAB for HISC operations.

Recurring Funding: HISC recommends that the Legislature establish recurring
funding for the HISC of $5 million annually, to be managed by the administering
department.

Recommendation:

The HISC adopts the recommendations discussed above, and any others, as
appropriate, for inclusion in the annual report to the Legislature for the upcoming
session.



Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Legislature
on transferring administration of the Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the
Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity

Attachment A

2024 Hawaii Revised Statutes
Title 12. Conservation and Resources
194. Invasive Species Council
194-2 Establishment of council; duties.

Universal Citation:
HI Rev Stat § 194-2 (2024)

§194-2 Establishment of council; duties. (a) There is established the invasive
species council forthe special purpose of providing policy level direction, coordination,
and planning among state departments, federal agencies, and international and local
initiatives for the control and eradication of harmful invasive species infestations
throughout the State and for preventing the introduction of other invasive species that
may be potentially harmful. The council shall:

(1) Maintain a broad overview of the invasive species problem in the State;

(2) Advise, consult, and coordinate invasive species-related efforts with and
between the departments of agriculture, land and natural resources, health, and
transportation, as well as state, federal, international, and privately organized
programs and policies;

(3) Identify and prioritize each lead agency's organizational and resource shortfalls
with respect to invasive species;

(4) After consulting with appropriate state agencies, create and implement a plan
that includes the prevention, early detection, rapid response, control, enforcement,
and education of the public with respect to invasive species, as well as fashion a
mission statement articulating the State's position againstinvasive species; provided
that the appropriate state agencies shall collaborate with the counties and
communities to develop and implement a systematic approach to reduce and control
coqui frog infestations on public lands that are near or adjacent to communities, and
shall provide annual reports on the progress made in achieving this objective;

(5) Coordinate and promote the State's position with respect to federal issues,
including:

(A) Quarantine preemption;

(B) International trade agreements that ignore the problem of invasive species in
Hawaii;

(C) First class mail inspection prohibition;

(D) Whether quarantine of domestic pests arriving from the mainland should be
provided by the federal government;



Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Legislature
on transferring administration of the Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the

Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity

(E) Coordinating efforts with federal agencies to maximize resources and reduce or
eliminate system gaps and leaks, including deputizing the United States
Department of Agriculture's plant protection and quarantine inspectors to enforce
Hawaii's laws;

(F) Promoting the amendment of federal laws as necessary, including the Lacey Act
Amendments of 1981, Title 16 United States Code sections 3371-3378; Public Law
97-79, and laws related to inspection of domestic airline passengers, baggage, and
cargo; and

(G) Coordinating efforts and issues with the federal Invasive Species Council and
its National Invasive Species Management Plan;

(6) Identify and record all invasive species presentin the State;

(7) Designate the department of agriculture, health, or land and natural resources as
the lead agency for each function of invasive species control, including prevention,
rapid response, eradication, enforcement, and education;

(8) Identify all state, federal, and other moneys expended for the purposes of the
invasive species problem in the State;

(9) Identify all federal and private funds available to the State to fight invasive
species and advise and assist state departments to acquire these funds;

(10) Advise the governor and legislature on budgetary and other issues regarding
invasive species;

(11) Provide annual reports on budgetary and other related issues to the legislature
twenty days prior to each regular session;

(12) Include and coordinate with the counties in the fight againstinvasive species to
increase resources and funding and to address county-sponsored activities that
involve invasive species;

(13) Review state agency mandates and commercial interests that sometimes call
for the maintenance of potentially destructive alien species as resources for sport
hunting, aesthetic resources, or other values;

(14) Review the structure of fines and penalties to ensure maximum deterrence for
invasive species-related crimes;

(15) Suggest appropriate legislation to improve the State's administration of invasive
species programs and policies;

(16) Incorporate and expand upon the department of agriculture's weed risk
assessment protocol to the extent appropriate for the council's invasive species
control and eradication efforts; and

(17) Perform any otherfunction necessary to effectuate the purposes of this chapter.



Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Legislature
on transferring administration of the Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the
Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity

(b) The council shall be placed within the department of land and natural resources for
administrative purposes only and shall be composed of:

(1) The president of the University of Hawaii, or the president's designated
representative;

(2) The director, or the director's designated representative, of each of the following
departments:

(A) Business, economic development, and tourism;
(B) Health; and
(C) Transportation; and

(3) The chairperson, or the chairperson's designated representative, of each of the
following departments:

(A) Agriculture; and
(B) Land and natural resources.

(c) Representatives of federal agencies, the legislature, and members of the private
sector shall be asked to participate or consulted for advice and assistance.
Representatives of the legislature shall consist of eight members, as follows:

(1) Four senators, one from each county, to be selected by the senate president;
and

(2) Four representatives, one from each county, to be selected by the speaker of the
house of representatives.

(d) The council shall meetno less than twice annually to discuss and assess progress
and recommend changes to the invasive species programs based on results of current
risk assessments, performance standards, and other relevant data. Notwithstanding
any law to the contrary:

(1) A simple maijority of voting members of the council shall constitute a quorum to
do business; and

(2) Any action taken by the council shall be by a simple maijority of the voting
members.

(e) The council shall submit a report of its activities to the governor and legislature
annually. [L 2003, c 85, §3; am L 2004, c 10, §16; am L 2006, c 109, § §1, 2;am L
2008, ¢ 160, §1]



Suggestions on providing recommendations from the Hawaii Invasive Species Council to the Legislature
on transferring administration of the Council from the Department of Land and Natural Resources to the

Department of Agriculture and Biosecurity

Attachment B

ACT 236



JOSH GREEN, M.D.
GOVERNOR \

i) GOV. MSG. NO. 1528

KE KIA'AINA
EXECUTIVE CHAMBERS
KE KE'ENA O KE KIA*AINA
June 27, 2025
The Honorable Ronald D. Kouchi The Honorable Nadine Nakamura
President of the Senate, Speaker, and Members of the
and Members of the Senate House of Representatives

Thirty-Third State Legislature Thirty-Third State Legislature
State Capitol, Room 409 State Capitol, Room 431
Honolulu, Hawai'‘i 96813 Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813

Aloha President Kouchi, Speaker Nakamura, and Members of the Legislature:

This is to inform you that on June 27, 2025, the following bill was signed into law:

H.B. NO. 427, H.D. 2, RELATING TO BIOSECURITY.
S.D.2,CD. 1 ACT 236
Mahalo,
b ST paee M.D.

Josh Green, M.D.
Governor, State of Hawai'i



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

Approved by the Governor

N ACT 236

- {

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 427

THIRTY-THIRD LEGISLATURE, 2025 H . B . N O , HD.2

STATE OF HAWAII S.D.2
C.D.1

A BILL FOR AN ACT

RELATING TO BIOSECURITY.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAIIL:

PART I

SECTION 1. The purpose of this part is to:

(1) Rename the department of agriculture as the department
of agriculture and biosecurity, and the board of
agriculture as the board of agriculture and
biosecurity; and

(2) Clarify the composition of the board of agriculture
and biosecurity.

SECTION 2. Section 26-16, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is

amended by amending its title and subsection (a) to read as
follows:

"§26-16 Department of agriculture[-] and biosecurity. (a)

The department of agriculture and biosecurity shall be headed by

an executive board to be known as the board of agriculture(=]

and biosecurity. The board shall consist of ten members:

(1) One who shall be a resident of the county of Hawaii;

(2) One who shall be a resident of the county of Maui;

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. f3:

S.D.2
C.D.1

(3) One who shall be a resident of the county of Kauai;

(4) Four at large; and

{5) The chairperson of the board of land and natural
resources; the director of business, economic
development, and tourism; and the dean of the

University of Hawaii college of tropical agriculture

and human [¥eseu¥rees+] resilience, or their designated
representatives, who shall serve as ex officio[+], [+]
voting members.

The majority of the members of the board described in

paragraphs (1) through (4) shall be from the agricultural

community or [#he] agricultural support sector[~<], with at least

one member having a background in biosecurity. The appointment,

tenure, and removal of the members and the filling of vacancies
on the board shall be as provided in section 26-34. The
governor shall appoint a chairperson of the board from the
members."

SECTION 3. Section 26-56, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is

amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows:

"{b) The commission shall review and recommend an

appropriate salary for the governor, lieutenant governor,

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

RS A



10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

e H.B. NO.

S
N
\l

ovT

mempbers of the legislature, Jjustices and judges of all state

courts, administrative director of the State or an equivalent

position, and department heads or executive officers and the

deputies or assistants to the department heads of the

departments of:
(1) Accounting and general services;

(2) Agriculture+] and biosecurity;

(3) The attorney general;

(4) Budget and finance;

(5) Business, economic development,
(6) Commerce and consumer affairs;
(7) Corrections and rehabilitation;

(8) Defense;
(9) Hawaiian home lands;

(10) Health;

(11) Human resources development;
(12) Human services;

(13) Labor and industrial relations;
(14) Land and natural resources;
(15) Law enforcement;

(16) Taxation; and

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO

A TR A e

and tourism;

o0

-~ NN



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. :

SD.2
CD.1

(17) Transportation.

The commission shall not review the salary of any position
in the department of education or the University of Hawaii.

The commission may recommend different salaries for
department heads and executive officers and different salary
ranges for deputies or assistants to department heads; provided
that the commission shall recommend the same salary range for
deputies or assisténts to department heads within the same
department; provided further that the appointing official shall
specify the salary for a particular position within the
applicable range.

The commission shall not recommend salaries lower than
salary amounts recommended by prior commissions replaced by this
section."

SECTION 4. Section 141-42, Hawaiil Revised Statutes, is
amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows:

"(b) An individual or entity licensed to produce hemp
pursuant to subsection (a) may transport hemp within the State
to a facility authorized by law to process hemp or to another
licensed producer's grow area; provided that the transportation

has been reported to the department of agriculture(=] and

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

A R ST



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

e H.B. NO. i:

SD.2
C.D. 1

biosecurity. The department of agriculture and biosecurity may

require movement reports that include copies of the United
States Department of Agriculture test results for the hemp to be
transported and may deny authorization if the hemp is found to
not comply with any law or regulation."”

SECTION 5. Section 142-18, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§142-18 Disposal of tuberculous animals. The owner of
all cattle reacting to the tuberculin test shall, subject to
section 142-16, cause them to be segregated immediately and,
within a reasonable time thereafter, to be delivered for
slaughter at such time and place as may be designated by the

department of agriculture[+] and biosecurity. The slaughter

shall bé under the direct supervision of the department and in
accordance with the meat inspection regulations of the United
States Department of Agriculture."

SECTION 6. Section 142-21, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 1is
amended to read as follows:

"§142-21 Cooperation with federal authorities. The

department of agriculture and biosecurity may cooperate with the

United States Department of Agriculture in its efforts to

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

AR BSNBEA AN



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H
N
-~

e H.B. NO.

00T
OO0
NN

eradicate bovine tuberculosis or any other transmissible disease
of animals, and may make appraisals of condemned animals and
report on the salvage derived from the sale of the animals in
conformity with the regulations of the United States Department
of Agriculture.”

SECTION 7. Section 147-52, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§147-52 Grades, étandards and classifications; changes.
The standards for grading and classifying food products that
have been or may be hereafter adopted, prescribed, or announced
by the United States Department of Agriculture or by or under
authority of the Congress of the United States are hereby
declared to be the official standards for grading and
classifying such food products for the State; provided that the

department of agriculture and biosecurity may establish and

prescribe other and different, or additional, standards for
grading and classifying any such products, to the extent
permitted by the laws of the United States, which standards, so
established and prescribed by the department, shall be the
official standards for grading and classifying any such food

products for the State. The department may also establish and

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO

AR R AR DA



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. i3

S.D.2
C.D.1

prescribe official standards for grading and classifying any or
all food products for which no standards have been adopted,
prescribed, or announced by the United States Department of
Agriculture or by or under authority of the Congress. The
department may change any standards established and prescribed
by it hereunder from time to time."

SECTION 8. Section 147-53, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows;

"§147-53 Department; grades, standards, and
classifications; factors. 1In establishing any grades,
standards, or classifications for any food product, the

department of agriculture(+] and biosecurity, in addition to

such factors as may be specified in any other law, shall take
into account and base the grades, standards, or classifications
upon such of thé following factors as shall be applicable to the
product involved: degree of maturity; size, measured by
dimensions or weight; degree of freshness, as determined by
physical examination or chemical test or analysis; moisture
content; uniformity; color; firmness; tenderness; defects;
injury; damage; diseases; appearance; mixture of varieties;

decay; conformation; soundness; varietal characteristics or

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

R RN AR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. i
S.D.

2
C.D. 1

type; number of specimens per pound; nature of pack; presence of
dirt or other foreign material; condition as to temperature and
extent to which the product is hot or heating or is in a sour
condition; extent to which product is satisfactory for human or
other consumption or use; extent to which the product has been
affected by handling or treatment; extent to which the product
has a commercially objectionable flavor or odor; and other
factors indicative of class, éuality, or condition, and of the
value or suitability of the product involved for the commercial
or other use to be made thereof. 1In addition, the department
shall take into account any grades, standards, or
classifications for such product established by the United
States Department of Agriculture and also applicable federal
grades and standard laws."

SECTION 8. Section 147-57, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§147-57 Department, rules and regulations, contracts,
cooperation, fees. The department of agriculture[+] and

biosecurity, in addition to powers granted by this part or any

other law, shall have all powers necessary or convenient to

carry out and effectuate this part, including the following:

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

UL T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 9

(1)

H.B. NO. ke

SD.2
CD. 1

To prescribe rules and regulations, not inconsistent
with this part, respecting: the standards for grading
and classifying, and the grades, standards, and
classification for, food products; the inspection,
grading, and classification of food products; the
determination and certification of the grade,
classification, quality, and condition of food
products and such othef pertinent facts as the
department may deem advisable; the licensing of
inspectors, graders, and samplers and the duties of
such inspectors, graders, and samplers;.methods of
test, analysis, and examination in determining the
grade, classification, quality, and condition of food
products; the official word or words, figure, or
letter to indicate official grade or standards of
quality or condition of food products; the design,
form, and use of official labels and statements for
use on packages or containers of products inspected,
graded, classified, and certified under this part; and
continuous factory inspection, grading,

classification, and certification of food prodﬁcts;

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO

AR BRE R AR SRR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 10

(2)

(3)

(4)

H.B. NO. #2:

SD.2
CD.1

To contract with the United States Department of
Agriculture for the services of an inspector or
inspectors employed by the department and the
establishment of a cooperative inspection service with
the United States government;

To cooperate with the United States or any department
thereof, in accomplishing the matters or things
provided for herein; and |

To fix, assess, and collect, or cause to be collected,
fees for inspecting or classifying food products, such
fees to be on a uniform basis in an amount reasonably
necessary to cover, as nearly as may be, the cost of
the inspection and the administration of this part;
provided that the department may adjust the fees to be
collected hereunder to meet the expenses necessary to
carry out the provisions hereof and may prescribe a
different scale of fees for different localities;
[ar€] provided further that the department may'
prescribe a reasonable charge for traveling expenses
and services. Charges for continuous factory

inspection and grading may be fixed, assessed, and

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 10

A A



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Page 11 427
H.B. NO. to

S.D.2
C.D. 1

collected on such contract basis as will reimburse the

State for the salary and all expenses of the factory

inspector or grader, to which shall be added an

appropriate percentage of charges assessed to cover,

as nearly as practicable, administrative overhead

expense."

SECTION 10. Section 147-74, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is

amended to read as follows:

"§147-74 Grading standards and regulations. Subject to

chapter 91, the department of agriculture and biosecurity may

make rules with respect to:

{1) Sale and transportation for sale of eggs for human
consumption;
(2) Specific grades or standards of quality, condition,

and size or weight classes which shall conform when
practical to those established by the United States

Department of Agriculture as local conditions will

permit;
(3) Inspection and classification;
2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 11

AR T R R R



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 12

(4)

(6)

(7)

(9)

H.B. NO. #2:

SD.2
C.D.1

Assessment and collection of fees for requested
certification as to grade, standard of quality,
condition, &and size or weight classes;

Labeling of containers of imported and locally
produced eggs and marking of individual imported eggs
as to origin;

Seller's invoice for sale of eggs:

Records of imported shell eggs of foreign origin;
Methods of determining egg quality, which shall not
include recandling or any other method applied to eggs
in interstate commerce which is discriminatory or
impairs that commerce in any way or requires a cost
increase of eggs in interstate commerce; and
Enforcement of this part and of the rules adopted

under this part.”

SECTION 11. Section 147-93, Hawalii Revised Statutes, 1is

amended to read as follows:

"§147-93 Cooperating with federal authority. The

department of agriculture and biosecurity may enter into

cooperative agreements with the United States Department of

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 12

AR RSO



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H

27

H.B. NO. ¢

onT

D.2
D. 2
D.1
Agriculture for the purpose of grading beef, pork, mutton, and
lamb carcasses."”

SECTION 12. Section 159-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"[$]1§159-2[}] Findings and declaration of necessity. It
is hereby declared that the meat industry is a paramount
agricultural industry of this State and the production and
marketing of meat i1s an enterprise that is of significant
importance to the economy of this State and to the health of the
consuming public. It is essential to the public health and
welfare of consumers that they be protected by assuring that
meat and meat products distributed to them are wholesome, not
adulterated, and properly marked, labeled, and packaged.
Unwholesome, adulterated, or misbranded meat or meat products
are injurious to the public health and welfare, destroy markets
for wholesome, unadulterated, and properly labeled and packaged
meat and meat products and result in sundry losses to livestock
producers and processors of meat and meat products, as well as
injury to consumers. The unwholesome, adulterated, mislabeled,
or deceptively packaged articles can be sold at lower prices and

compete unfairly with the wholesome, unadulterated, and properly

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 13

LR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 14 427
H.B. NO. o

SD.2
C.D. 1

labeled and packaged articles, to the detriment of consumers and
the public generally. It is hereby found that regulation by the

department of agriculture and biosecurity and cooperation by

this State with the United States Department of Agriculture as
contemplated by this Hawaii Meat Inspection Act is appropriate
to protect the health and welfare of consumers and otherwise to
effectuate the purposes of this chapter.

Congress enacted the Meat Inspection Act in 1907 (Public
Law 59-242), as amended by the Wholesome Meat Act in 1967
(Public Law 90-201) which is now redesignated as the Federal
Meat Inspection Act. The Federal Meat Inspection Act is
intended to protect the consuming public from adulterated or
misbranded meat and meat products and to assist the states in
their efforts to accomplish this objective. The Federal Meat
Inspection Act authorizes the Secretary of Agriculture to
furnish financial and related assistance to states for the
administration of meat inspection programs which conform to
established federal standards up to fifty per cent of the
estimated total cost of the cooperative program. Presently, the
meat processing industry in this State is not subject to any

meat inspection law or rules and regulations that meet the

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 14

ARG AR R



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 15 427
H.B. NO. o

SD.2
CD.1

minimum federal requirement in this area. This State, in order
to qualify for the cooperative program, must demonstrate
"progressive action" by November 15, 1969; and, further, all
physical facilitieé must be upgraded in accordance with the
established federal standards by November 15, 1970. Failure to
comply with the federal standards prescribed by the Federal Meat
Inspection Act will result in federal control of the meat and
meat processing industries of the State. Accordingly, the State
deems it to be in the best interest of the public health and
welfare to take those steps as are necessary to qualify for
federal financial and related assistance for the administration
of a meat inspection program which conforms to federal standards
prescribed in the Federal Meat Inspection Act."

SECTION 13. Section 161-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§161-2 Findings and declaration of necessity. It is
hereby declared that the poultry industry is a paramount
agricultural industry of this State and the production and
marketing of poultry is an enterprise that is of significant
importance to the economy of the State and to the health of the

consuming public. It is essential to the public health and

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 15

L



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 16 427
H.B. NO. t»o:

SD.2
C.D. 1

welfare of consumers that they be protected by assuring that
poultry or poultry products distributed to them are wholesome,
not adulterated, and properly marked, labeled, and packaged.
Unwholesome, adulterated, or misbranded poultry or poultry
products are injurious to the public health and welfare, destroy
markets for wholesome, not adulterated, and properly labeled and
packaged poultry or poultry products, and result in sundry
losses to poultry producers and processors of poultry as well as
injury to consumers. The unwholesome, adulterated, mislabeled,
or deceptively packaged articles can be sold at lower prices and
compete unfairly with the wholésome, not adulterated, and
properly labeled and packaged articles, to the detriment of

consumers and the public generally. It is hereby found that

regulation by the department of agriculture and biosecurity and
cooperation by this State with the United States Department of
Agriculture as contemplated by this chapter is appropriate to
protect the health and welfare of consumers and otherwise to
effectuate the purposes of this chapter.

The 90th Congress enacted Public Law 90-492, entitled "The
Wholesome Poultry Products Act”, which is now redesignated as

the "Poultry Products Inspection Act". The Poultry Products

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO ' 16

LI R T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

N
(S
~

et H.B. NO.

owx
OO0
NN

Inspection Act is intended to protect the consuming public from
adulterated or misbranded poultry or poultry products and to
assist the states in their efforts to accomplish this objective.
The Poultry Products Inspection Act authorizes the United States
Secretary of Agriculture to furnish financial and related
assistance to states for the administration of poultry
inspection programs which conform to established federal
standards up to fifty per cent of the estimated total cost of
the cooperative program. Hawaii's poultry industry is not
subject to poultry inspection law or rules and regulations that
meet the minimum federal requirement in this area. In order to
qualify for the cooperative program, the State must demonstrate
"progressive action" by July 18, 1970; and, further, all
physical facilities must be upgraded in accordance with the
established federal standards by July 18, 1971. Failure to
comply with the standards prescribed by the Poultry Products
Inspection Act will result in federal control of the poultry or
poultry processing industries of the State. Accordingly, the
State of Hawaii deems it to be in the interest of the State's
public health and welfare to take [sueh] steps as are necessary

to qualify for federal financial and related assistance for the

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 17

AR AN KD B



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. i:

.D.2
.D. 1

administration of a poultry inspection program which conforms to
federal standards prescribed in the Poultry Products Inspection
Act."

SECTION 14. Section 205-47, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows:

"{(b) Each counfy shall develop maps of potential lands to
be considered for designation as important agricultural lands in
consultation and cooperation with landowners(+]; the department

of agriculture{+]) and biosecurity; agricultural interest groups,

including representatives from the Hawaii Farm Bureau Federation
and other agricultural organizations[+]; the United States
Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources Conservation
Service([+]; the office of planning and sustainable
development [+]; and other groups as nec;ssary."

SECTION 15. Section 219-8, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 1is
amended to read as follows:

"§219-8 Participation in loans by the department.

(1) The department of agriculture and biosecurity may

provide funds for a share, not to exceed ninety per
cent, of the principal amount of a loan made to a

qualified aquaculturist by a private lender who is

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 18

AR TSR AR AR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 19

(4)

H.B. NO. #2:

S.D.2
C.D. 1

otherwise unable [etherwise] to lend the applicant
sufficient funds at reasonable rates where the
qualified farmer is unable to obtain sufficient funds
for the same purpose from the United States Department
of Agriculture;

Participation loans under this section shall be
limited by the provisions of section 219-6 and the

department of [agrieuwlturels] agriculture and

biosecurity's share shall not exceed the maximum

amounts specified therefor;

Interest charged on the private lender's share of the
loan shall not be more than the sum of two per cent
above the lowest rate of interest charged by all state
or national banks authorized to accept or hold
deposits in the State on secured short term loans made
to borrowers who have the highest credit rating with
those banks;

The private lender's share of the loan may be insured
by the department up to ninety per cent of the

principal balance of the loan, under section 219-7;

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 19

U]



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 20

(6)

(7)

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

LT T

S.D.2
CD. 1

427
H.B. NO. ro:

When a participation loan has been approved by the
department, its share shall be paid to the
participating private lender for disbursement to the
borrower. The private lender shall collect all
payments from the borrower and otherwise service the
loan;
Out of interest collected, the private lender may be
paid a service fee to be determined by the department
[whieh—Ffee] that shall not exceed one per cent of the
unpaid principal balance of the loan; provided that
this fee shall not be added to any amount which the
borrower is obligated to pay;
The participating private lender may take over a
larger percentage or the full principal balance of the
loan at any time that it has determined, to the
satisfaction of the department, that the borrower is
able to pay any increased interest charges resulting;
and
Security for participation loans shall be limited by
section 219-5(a) (6). RAll collateral documents shall

be held by the private lender. Division of interest

20



10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 21 427
H.B. NO. ro-

S.D.2
CD. 1

in collateral received shall be in proportion to
participation by the department and the private
lender."

SECTION 16. Section 460J-26, Hawail Revised Statutes, 1is

amended to read as follows:

"§460J-26 Exemptions. This chapter shall not apply to:

(1) Officials of the federal government on military
reservations;

(2) Personnel of the United States Department of
Agriculture, [£he] state department of agriculturels

e¥] and biosecurity, state department of land and

natural resources, or [#he] United States Public
Health Service in the performance of their official
duties;

(3) Other government employees who conduct research on
pesticides or pest control or who use pesticides in
the performance of their duties;

(4) Qualified scientific personnel specially exempted by
the board;

(5) Persons engaged in pest control for agricultural

purposes; oOr

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

LU T

21



10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 22

H.B. NO. #o:

S.D.2
CD.1

(6) Engineers or architects licensed under chapter 464

who:

(A)

(B)

(C)

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

N AR

Draft or prepare design documents that prescribe
anti-termite or anti-pest measures, including the
specification of termiticides, that are required
by the building code and other governmental
agencies;

Conduct building condition or assessment surveys
to observe and evaluate the condition of the
building or structure, if the primary purpose of
these surveys is not to report on the
identification of infestations; or

Prepare reports based on the results of the
surveys specified in subparagraph (B) that
identify the location, extent, and probable cause
of the pest damage (e.g., "termite damage");
provided that where a report concerns termite
damage, the particular type or species of termite
shall not be specified unless the report is
written in consultation with a licensed pest

control operator licensed in termite control or

22



10
11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

iN
N
N

e H.B. NO.

owzx
ooD
NN

other duly recognized expert in urban entomology,
such as an insect taxonomist or urban
entomologist with expertise in the identification
or control of termites; and provided further that
if a licensed pest control operator is not
consulted, the report shall include a
recommendation that a licensed pest control
operator be contracted for further assessment or
trea£ment."

SECTION 17. Sections 6E-61, 23-12, 26-4, 26-l6(d), 46-67,
141-1, 141-3, 141-3.6, 141-4, 141-5, 141-6, 141-7, 141-9, 141-
12, 141-12.5, 141-13, 141-14, 141-15, 141-16, 141-17, 141-43,
141-51, 141-53, 141D-1, 141D-2, 142-1, 142-2, 142-3, 142-3.5,
142-4, 142-5, 142-6, 142-7, 142-8, 142-9, 142-12, 142-13,
142-16, 142-19, 142-20, 142-22, 142-23, 142-23.1, 142-23.5, 142-
29, 142-31, 142-41, 142-43, 142-49, 142-92, 142-93, 142-98, 142-
100, 142-101, 142-111, 143-2.2, 144-1, 145-1, 145-3, 145-7, 145-
8, 145-9, 145-27, 145D-5, 146-22, 147-1, 147-21, 147-31, 147-32,
147-51, 147-54, 147-55, 147-56, 147-58, 147-59, 147-60, 147-73,
147-75, 147-76, 147-78, 147-80, 147-91, 147-92, 147-94, 147-95,

147-96, 147-97, 147-101, 147-102, 147-111, 147-116, 147-122,

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 23

A R YRR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. i3

S.D.2
C.D. 1

148-1, 148-2, 148-61, 148-62, 148-63, 148-64, 148-66, 149A-2,
150-21, 150A-2, 150A-6.3, 150A-11.5, 152-1, 155-1, 155-2, 155-4,
155-5, 155-5.5, 155-5.6, 155-6, 155-6.5, 155-8, 155-9, 155-11,
155-12, 155-13, 155-14, 155-31, 155D-1, 157-1, 157-13, 159-3,
159-15, 161-3, 161-6, 163D-4, 166-2, 166-3, 166-11, 166E-1,
166E-2, 166E-3, 167-22, 167—23, 169-1, 171-2, 171—3, 171-37.5,
171-55.5, 171-59, 171-64.7, 171-112, 171-117, 173A-4, 173A-5,
174Cc-31, 187A-6.5, 194-2, 205-6, 205-44.5, 205-45, 205-45.5,
205-48, 205-49, 205-50, 205A-62, 206E-34, 219-2, 219-4, 219-7,
219-9, 235-110.93, 261-4.5, 266-21.5, 269-26.5, 342G-47, 421-¢6,
421-21.6, 460J-21, 4600J-24.5, and 486-1, Hawaii Revised
Statutes, and the title of chapter 141, Hawaii Revised Statutes,
are amended by substituting the term "department of agriculture
and biosecurity", or similar term, wherever the term "department
of agriculture", or similar term, appears, except within the
term "United States Department of Agriculture", as the context
requires.

SECTION 18. Sections 10-41, 26-34, 84-17, 84-18, 128E-2,
141-6, 141-9, 141-12, 141-51, 141D-2, 142-3.5, 142-3.6, l42-
23.1, 142-28.5, 142-29, 142-31, 144-10, 145-22, 145-27, 147-9,

147-24, 147-34, 147-58, 147-59, 147-60, 148-1, 149A-2, 149A-

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 24



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

H.B. NO. 2

32.5, 150a-2, 155-3, 155-5.6, 155-6.5, 155-9, 155-13, 155-14,
155-33, 157-1, 157-14, 157-15, 157-18, 157-22, 157-23, 157-24,
157-25, 157-26, 157-27, 157-29, 157-41, 157-42, 159-3, 161-3,
163D-3, 166-2, 166-3, 166-4, 166-5, 166-6, 166-11, 166E-1, 166E-
2, 166E-3, 167-1, 167-2, 167-3, 167-4, 167-5, 167-6, 167-7, 167-
9, 167-11, 167-12, 167-13, 167-14, 167-15, 167-16, 167-17, 167-
18, 167-19, 167-20, 167-21, 167-22, 168-1, 168-2, 168-3, 168-4,
168-5, 168-6, 168-7, 168-8, 169-3, 195-6, 205-44, 210D-5, 219-2,
219-3, 219-4, 220-1, 225p-3, 225P-4, 279A-4, 330C-3, 371-19,
460J-2, and 486-1, Hawail Revised Statutes, are amended by
substituting the term "board of agriculture and biosecurity", or
similar term, wherever the term "board of agriculture", or
similar term, appears, as the context requires.

SECTION 19. Sections 26-52 and 194-2 (b), Hawaii Revised
Statutes, are amended by substituting the words "agriculture and
biosecurity”, or similar term, wherever the word "agriculture",
or similar term, appears, as the context requires.

PART II
SECTION 20. The purpose of this part is to establish a new

deputy chairperson position within the department of agriculture

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO 25

LT T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 26 427
H.B. NO. o

SD.2
C.D. 1

and biosecurity, to be known as the deputy chairperson for

biosecurity.

SECTION 21. Chapter 141, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended by adding a new section to be appropriately designated

and to read as follows:

"§141- Deputy chairperson for biosecurity; established.

{a) There is established within the department a deputy

chairperson for biosecurity. The deputy chairperson for

biosecurity shall oversee all of the department's biosecurity

initiatives, including programs under chapters 142 and 150A and

sections 141-5, 261-4.5, and 266-21.5.

(b) The deputy chairperson for biosecurity shall be a

deputy to the chairperson of the board of agriculture and

biosecurity and be appointed, without regard to chapter 76, by

the governor. The salary of the deputy chairperson for

biosecurity shall be as provided in section 26-53 for first

deputies or first assistants to the head of any department."”

PART TII
SECTION 22. Chapter 150A, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 1is
amended by adding a new section to part VI to be appropriately

designated and to read as follows:

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 26

LT



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 27 427
H.B. NO. ro:

SD.2
CD.1

"§150A- Biosecurity emexrgency. (a) The department,

with the approval of the governor, may declare a biosecurity

emergency if:

(1) There has been in the State an outbreak or occurrence

of a pest or prohibited or restricted organism that

has the potential to cause significant economic or

environmental loss if the pest or organism becomes

established in the State;

(2) There is established in one area of the State a pest

or prohibited or restricted organism that has the

potential to cause significant economic or

environmental loss if the pest or organism expands to

other areas within a county or becomes established in

another area of the State; or

(3) A pest or prohibited or restricted organism is, or

threatens to be, beyond the State's ability to

control.

(b) A biosecurity emergency shall automatically terminate

one hundred calendar days after its declaration, unless the

declaration is extended by the department with the approval of

the governor.

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 27

R TR R



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 28

(c)

H.B. NO. :s:

S.D.2
CD. 1

For the duration of a declared biosecurity emergency:

(1)

The department shall be exempt from chapter 103D;

(2)

The Hawaii invasive species council shall work with

the chairperson; and

The governor may transfer moneys to the department

(d)

from any account within the governor's control.

The governor may requisition and take control of any

goods, real property, or watercraft required for the purposes of

this section, or requisition and take control of the temporary

use thereof; provided that:

(1)

This subsection shall not apply to any vessel that:

(2)

(A) Has anti-fouling hull coating; and

(B) Does not discharge ballast water, uses freshwater

for ballasting, or is equipped with ultraviolet

filtration systems for ballast water;

The requisition shall be made by serving notice upon

any person found in occupation of the premises or

having the property in the person's custody,

possession, or control, and a like notice shall also

be served upon any person who has filed with the

governor, or with a person the governor designates for

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 28

L T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 29 427
H.B. NO. roz

SD.2
C.D. 1

the purpose, a request for notice with respect to the

property; provided further that if any person entitled

to compensation for the property is unable to be

served, the governor shall publish a notice of the

requisition at the earliest practicable date; and

(3) A requisition shall terminate automatically one

hundred calendar days after the declaration of a

biosecurity emergency, or by a separate proclamation

of the governor, whichever occurs first.

(e) If the governor requisitions and takes control of any

property or the temporary use thereof, the owner, or other

person entitled thereto, shall be paid a sum, determined by the

governor to be fair and just compensation for the property or

use, within twenty days after the property has been

requisitioned and taken, or in monthly or lesser installments if

the property is taken for temporary use.

If any person is unwilling to accept the sum determined by

the governor as full and complete compensation for the property

or use, the person shall be paid seventy-five per cent of that

sum and may sue the State for an additional sum that, when added

to the sum already received by the person, the person may

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 29

R



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 30

H.B. NO. 2

S.D.2
CD. 1

consider fair and just compensation for the property or use, in

the manner provided by chapter 661 for actions against the

State; provided that:

(1)

Any suit under this section shall be instituted within

two years after the requisition in the case of the

taking of real property in fee simple, or within one

year after the requisition in all other cases, subject

to sections 657-13 to 657-15, which are hereby made

applicable to the suit:

No more than six months shall be allowed for the

(3)

bringing of a suit after the appointment of a

conservator of a person under disability, or the

removal of the disability, or after the appointment of

personal representatives; and

Recovery shall be confined to the fair market value of

the property or its fair rental value, as the case may

be, without any allowance for prospective profits, or

punitive or other damages.

If the owner of property, or other person entitled to

compensation for the requisitioning of property or use thereof,

is under a disability, or has died, and no conservator or

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 30




10
11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

o
N
~

i H.B. NO.

OnI
DoD
= NN

personal representative has been appointed, the State, acting

through the attorney general, may apply for the appointment of a

conservator or for the appointment of a personal representative.

(f) The governor shall appoint a board of three

disinterested certified appraisers with whom may be filed any

claim for damages arising out of any failure to return private

property, the temporary use of which was requisitioned, or which

was leased, or any claim for damages arising out of the

condition in which the private property is returned. No claim

may be filed for deterioration of property resulting from

ordinary wear and tear and not for any deterioration or damage,

except any that is shown to have resulted from the taking or use

of the property; provided that any claim shall be filed within

thirty days after the return of the property or after the

governor proclaims that all private property has been returned

to the owners, whichever is earlier. The decision of the

appraisers shall be final and binding upon the governor and the

claimant. Either party may file a petition in the circuit court

within sixty days after the rendering of a decision of the board

of appraisers, praying for the decision of the court upon the

claim. The petition, if filed by the State, shall be entitled

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 31

LR A



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

 H.B.NO. i

SD.2
CD.1

in the name of the State by the attorney general and shall be

heard and decided by the circuit court without the intervention

of a jury. 1If filed by any other party, the petition shall be

filed, heard, and decided in the manner provided for suits

against the State. Appellate review may be had, subject to

chapter 602, in the manner provided for civil appeals from the

circuit courts. The court may order the joinder of other

parties or may allow other parties to intervene. Any award that

has become final shall be paid out of any funds available under

this chapter and, if not sufficient, out of the general revenues

of the State as appropriated.”

SECTION 23. Section 150A-52, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§150A-52 Objectives of biosecurity program. The
objectives of the biosecurity program shall be to:

(1) Establish a multi-dimensional system to survey for and

prevent the entry into the State and interisland
movement of pests and prohibited or restricted
organisms without a permit;

(2) Respond effectively to eradicate, control, reduce, and

suppress incipient pest populations and established

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 32

A A




10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 33 427
H.B. NO. #o:2

S.D.2
CD. 1
pests and seize and dispose of prohibited or
restricted organisms without a permit; and
(3) Coordinate with partner agencies and organizations to

direct the control and eradication of [ipvesive
speetess] pests.”

SECTION 24. Section 150A-53, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 1is
amended to read as follows:

"§150A-53 General actions to achieve objectives. (a) To
achieve the objectives of the biosecurity program, the
department shall plan for and, within available legislative
appropriations or through funding from other sources, implement
the following:

(1) Work with government agencies and agricultural
commodity exporters of other states and countries to
establish pre-entry inspection programs under which
inbound cargo into the State is inspected at the ports
of departure or other points outside the State;

(2) Establish, operate, or participate in operating port-
of-entry facilities where multiple government agencies
may inspect, quarantine, fumigate, disinfect, destroy,

or exclude as appropriate, articles that may harbor

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 33

R A e



10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 34

(3)

(4)

(5)

H.B. NO. io:

SD.2
CD.1

pests or prohibited or restricted organisms or exclude

articles that are prohibited or restricted without a

permit, with the goals of:

() Performing inspections in an efficient,
effective, and expeditious manner for the
government agencies involved and for cargo
owners, carriers, and importers; and

(B) Providing for the proper and safe storage and
handling of cargo, especially agricultural and
food commodities, awaiting inspection;

Develop, implement, and coordinate post-entry measures

to eradicate, control, reduce, and suppress pests and,

as appropriate, eradicate or seize and dispose of
prohibited or restricted organisms without a permit
that have entered the State;

Collaborate with relevant government agencies,

agricultural commodity importers, and other persons to

eﬁamine and develop joint integrated systems to better
implement the biosecurity program;

Improve cargo inspection capabilities and methods,

including enhancement of the content and submission

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 34

LU



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. f:

SD.2
C.D.1

requirements for cargo manifests and agricultural
commodity ownership and movement certificates;

(6) Promote the production of agricultural commodities in
the State to reduce cargo shipments of imported
commodities into the State; and

(7) Provide public education on [¥he]:

(A) The negative effects of pests and prohibited or
restricted organisms without a permit, to the

environment and economy of the State{=];

(B) Reporting pests and prohibited or restricted

organisms without a permit that are discovered or

suspected to be present in imported products; and

(C) Protecting imported products to prevent pest

infestation.

(b) For purposes of the biosecurity program, the

department may:

(1) Subpoena any necessary documentation from importers

relating to a discovered or suspected infestation of a

pest or prohibited or restricted organism; and

(2) Declare a biosecurity emergency pursuant to section

150A-

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO

(RERMRMRU A AT TR L

35



10
11

12

14
15
16
17
18
19

20

Page 36 427
H.B. NO. &

SD.2
CD. 1

[>] (c) The department shall establish parameters and
construction requirements for biosecurity facilities that
provide for and ensure the safety of agricultural and food
commodities consumed by Hawaii residents, including cold storage
facilities established by private-public partnerships to
preserve the gquality and ensure the safety of the commodities
arriving at the State's airports and harbors."

PART IV

SECTION 25. The legislature finds that New Zealand's use
of transitional facilities has increased the country's
biosecurity while improving the efficiency of importing goods.
In New Zealand, most imported goods subject to inspection are
transported away from the airport or seaport to one of six
thousand five hundred privately-run secure transitional
facilities. At the transitional facility, a private individual
licensed by the government inspects the goods for disease,
infection, infestation, and other matters of concern.

The legislature further finds that New Zealand's process
allows for a more efficient flow of goods entering the country

by reducing delays or stoppages at the ports of entry while also

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 36

AR e



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

reee HB. NO. to->

SD.2
CD.1

ensuring that all relevant goods are properly inspected before
delivery to their destination.

The purpose of this part is to enhance Hawaii's biosecurity
measures by authorizing the establishment of similar
transitional facilities in the State along with licenses for
private individuals to inspect the imported goods.

SECTION 26. Chapter 150A, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended by adding five new sections to part II to be
appropriately designated and to read as follows:

"§150A-A Transitional facilities; uses. (a) Upon

notification by the department, items at a pier, airport, or

other place where the items are first received may be

transported to a transitional facility suitable for the items.

(b) Items transported pursuant to subsection (a) shall be

transported in a manner that they will not spread or be likely

to spread any infestation or infection of insects or diseases

that may be present.

(c) All costs and expenses incident to the use of a

transitional facility shall be borne by the importer or the

importer's agent. For the purposes of this subsection, "import"”

(and any nounal, verbal, adjectival, adverbial, and other

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 37

RS EACE DAV i



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 38 H B NO #SZ

SD.2
CD.1

equivalent for the term used interchangeably in this subsection)

means to bring or attempt to bring goods or products into the

State, and includes items labeled or designated as samples, even

if not intended for retail sale, subject to this chapter.

(d) No items shall be transported out of a transitional

facility unless:

(1) Authorized by the department; or

{(2) Certified by a biosecurity compliance auditor that the

items are free of diseases, infections, infestations,

and other items that the department deems relevant.

§150A-B Transitional facilities; established. The

department shall establish standards for transitional

facilities, including standards for the construction,

maintenance, and operation of transitional facilities. The

department may establish standards for transitional facilities

pursuant to the types of items stored by those facilities, and

corresponding classes of licensure.

§150A-C Transitional facility license. (a) No person

shall operate a transitional facility without a transitional

facility license and under the terms of a signed compliance

agreement.

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 38

M T B



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 39 427
H.B. NO.

S.D.2
CD.1

(b) A person may apply to the department for a

transitional facility license. The application shall be made

under oath on forms provided by the department and shall contain

information as prescribed by the department, including the

following:

{1) The name, business address, telephone number, social

security number, and, where applicable, the federal

tax identification number of the applicant;

(2) The proposed location of the transitional facility;

and

(3) The type of items the transitional facility will hold.

(c) The department shall establish standards for

transitional facilities, including:

(1) Standards for construction, maintenance, security, and

operation; and

(2) Quarterly inspections; provided that the department

may perform periodic random inspections to ensure

compliance.

(d)  The department may suspend or revoke a transitional

facility license if the transitional facility does not satisfy

the standards established by the department under subsection (c)

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 39

RS RS B



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

Page4d HB. NO. i

SD.2
C.D. 1

or the department determines that the transitional facility is

not in compliance under the terms of the compliance agreement.

§150A-D Biosecurity compliance auditor; certification.

(a) The department shall certify biosecurity compliance

auditors and offer training to individuals seeking a biosecurity

compliance auditor certification.

(b) The training shall include:

(1) The identification of diseases, infections,

infestations, and other subjects that the department

deems relevant; and

{2) Procedures following the identification of a disease,

infection, infestation, or other subject that the

department deems relevant.

(c) Upon completion of the training and satisfaction of

other requirements under the compliance agreement, the

department shall issue a biosecurity compliance auditor

certification to the individual. The certification shall be

valid for one year, shall identify the specific transitional

facility where the biosecurity compliance auditor is authorized

to conduct compliance audits, and may be renewed under

requirements established by the department.

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 40

RS SRR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 41 HB. NO. fo:

SD.2
CD. 1

(d) The department may require each biosecurity compliance

auditor to complete additional training as needed, including any

emergency training in the interests of biosecurity.

(e) The department may revoke or suspend any biosecurity

compliance auditor certification for good cause.

(f) A biosecurity compliance auditor may be employed by

the owner of a transitional facility.

(g) The department may charge reasonable fees for the

training, certification, and certification renewal under this

section.

§150A-E Biosecurity compliance auditor; powers. (a)

Subject to the terms of the compliance agreement, a certified

biosecurity compliance auditor may certify items located in a

transitional facility as free of diseases, infections,

infestations, and other items that the department deems

relevant.

(b) Unless authorized by the department, a certified

biosecurity compliance auditor shall not certify any items

located outside a transitional facility where the certified

biosecurity compliance auditor is authorized to conduct

inspections to ensure compliance."

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 41

L T R



10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. %

SD.2
CD.1

SECTION 27. Section 150A-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended by adding two new definitions to be appropriately

inserted and to read as follows:

""Biosecurity compliance auditor" means an individual with

a valid biosecurity compliance auditor certification issued

under section 150A-D.

"Transitional facility" means a facility with a valid

transitional facility license issued under section 150A-C."

SECTION 28. Section 150A-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§150A-5 Conditions of importation. The importation into
the State of any of the following articles, viz., nursery-stock,

tree, shrub, herb, vine, cut-flower, cut-foliage, cutting,

graft, scion, bud, seed, leaf, root, or rhizome} nut, fruit, or
vegetable; grain, cereal, or legume in the natural or raw state:
moss, hay, straw, dry-grass, or other forage; unmanufactured
log, limb, or timber, or any other plant-growth or plant-
product, unprocessed or in the raw state; soil; microorganisms;
live bird, reptile, nematode, insect, or any other animal in any
stage of development (that is in addition to the so-called

domestic animal, the guarantine of which is provided for in

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 42

L T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

e H.B. NO.

427

H.D.2
S.D.2
CD.1

chapter 142); box, vehicle, baggage, or any other container in

which the articles have been transported or any packing material

used in connection therewith shall be made in the manner

hereinafter set forth:

(1) Notification of arrival. Any person who receives for

transport or brings or causes to be brought to the

State as freight, air freight, baggage, or otherwise,

for the purpose of debarkation or entry therein, or as

ship's stores, any of the foregoing articles,

shall,

immediately upon the arrival thereof, notify the

department [—ir—writingr-] of the arrival, giving the

waybill number, container number, name and address of

the consignor, name and address of the consignee or

the consignee's agent in the State, marks, number of

packages, description of contents of each package,

port at which laden, and any other information that

may be necessary to locate or identify the same, and

shall hold the articles at the pier, airport,

other place where they are first received or

{ex] any

discharged, or a transitional facility, in a manner

that they will not spread or be likely to spread any

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO

LT

43



10

1

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 44

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

UL T

H

27

H.B. NO. .

OwI

infestation or infection of insects or diseases that
may be present until inspection and examination can be

made by the inspector or a certified biosecurity

compliance auditor to determine whether [exr—smet] any

article, or any portion thereof, is infested or
infected with or contains any pest. The department
may adopt rules to require identification of specific
articles-on negotiable and non-negotiable warehouse
receipts, bills of lading, or other documents of title
for inspection of pests. In addition, the departmenf
shall adopt rules to designate restricted articles
that shall require:
(A) A permit from the department in advance of
importation; or
(B) A department letter of authorization or
registration in advance of importation.
The restricted articles shall include but not be
limited to certain microorganisms or living insects.
Failure to obtain the permit, letter of authorization,
or registration in advance is a violation of this

section;

44



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 45

(2)

H
(¢
~

H.B. NO.

OnT
OO00
- NN

Individual passengers, officers, and crew.

(A)

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

AR A R

It shall be the responsibility of the
transportation company to distribute, prior to
the debarkation of passengers and baggage, the
State of Hawaii [plont—andanimal] biosecurity
declaration [ferm—in paper orelectronieform] to

each passenger, officer, and crew member of any

aircraft or vessel originating in the continental
United States or its possessions or from any
other area not under the jurisdiction of the
appropriate federal agency in order that the
passenger, officer, or crew member can comply
with the directions and requirements appearing
thereon. All passengers, officers, and crew
mempbers, whether or not they are bringing or
causing to be brought for entry into the State
[€he] any articles listed [em—the—ferm], shall
complete the declaration, except that one adult
member of a family may complete the declaration

for other family members. Any person who

(des e doed ton £  edund by

45



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 46

(B)

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

IR RN RS

H.B. NO. o

SD.2
C.D.1

seetiony] gives false information, fails to
declare restricted articles in the person's
possession or baggage, or fails to declare in

cargo manifests is in violation of this section;

el i  olats £ thi o 4 ALl

passengers, officers, and crew members who are

bringing or causing to be brought for entry into

the State domestic and other animals cited in

chapter 142, in addition to the articles

enumerated in this chapter, shall immediately

46



10

11

12

i3

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

S
N
N

e H.B. NO.

OwI
Do

.2
.2
1

upon arrival or prior to arrival notify the

department of the arrival of any restricted

article. The department may adopt rules

necessary to effectuate this subparagraph; and

(C) It shall be the responsibility of the officers
and crew of an aircraft or vessel originating in
the continental United States or its possessions
or from any'other area not under the jurisdiction
of the appropriate federal agency to immediately
report all sightings of any plants and animals to
the plant quarantine branch. Failure to comply
with this requirement is a violation of this
section;

[3) Plopteand-animal—declaration—feorm— The form—shall
irelude—dircetions for deelaringdeomestieandother
antmats—eited dn—echapter 142—inadditien—+teo—the
artieles—envmerated—inthis-echapter;

+4>] (3) Labels. Each container in which any of the
above-mentioned articles are imported into the State
shall be plainly and legibly marked, in a conspicuous

manner and place, with the name and address of the

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 47

AT ImRA



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

Page 48

[+453-]

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

RSO

H.B. NO. #:

SD.2
CD. 1

shipper or owner forwarding or shipping the same, the

name or mark of the person to whom the same 1is

forwarded or shipped or the person's agent, the name
of the country, state, or territory and locality

therein where the product was grown or produced, and a

statement of the contents of the container. Upon

failure to comply with this paragraph, the importer or
carrier is in violafion of this section;

(4) Authority to inspect. Whenever the inspector has

good cause to believe that the provisions of this

chapter are being violated, the inspector may:

(A) Enter and inspect any aircraft, vessel, or other
carrier at any time after its arrival within the
boundaries of the State, whether offshore, at the
pier, or at the airport, for the purpose of
determining whether any of the articles or pests
enumerated in this chapter or rules adopted
thereto, is present;

(B) Enter into or upon any pier, warehouse, airport,
or any other place in the State where any of the

above-mentioned articles are moved or stored, for

48



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 49

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

LT

S
N
~

H.B. NO.

O0I
oo
- NN

the purpose of ascertaining, by inspection and
examination, whether [er—snet] any of the articles
is infested or infected with any pest or disease
or contaminated with soil or contains prohibited
plants or animals; and
(C) Inspect any baggage or personal effects of
disembarking passengers, officers, and crew
members on aircraft or vessels arriving in the
State to ascertain if they contain any of the
articles or pests enumerated in this chapter. No
baggage or other personal effects of the
passengers or crew members shall be released
until the baggage or effects have been passed.
Baggage or cargo inspection shall be made at the
discretion of the~inspector, on the pier, vessel, or
aircraft or in any quarantine or inspection area.
Whenever the inspector has good cause to believe
that the provisions of this chapter are being
violated, the inspector may require that any box,
package, suitcase, or any other container carried as

ship's stores, cargo, or otherwise by any vessel or

49



10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 50

(&3]

H.B. NO. #o:

S.b.2
C.D. 1

aircraft moving between the continental United States
and Hawalil or between the [Hawaiiap—Fstands,] islands

of the State, be opened for inspection to determine

whether any article or pest prohibited by this chapter
or by rules adopted pursuant thereto is present. It
is a violation of this section if any prohibited
article or any pest or any plant, fruit, or vegetable
infested with plant pests.is found;

(5) Request for importation and inspection. 1In
addition to requirements of the United States customs
authorities concerning invoices or other formalities
incident to importations into the State, the importer
shall be required to file a written statement with the
department, signed by the importer or the importer's
agent, setting forth the importer's desire to import
certain of the above-mentioned articles into the State
and:

(A} Giving the following additional information:

(i) The kind (scientific name), quantity, and

description;

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 50

LT R



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 51

(i1)

(ii1i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

H.B. NO. ko2

S.D.2
CD. 1

The locality where same were grown or
produced;

Certification that all animals to be
imported are the progeny of captive
populations or have been held in captivity
for a period of one year immediately before
importation or have been specifically
approved fbr importation by the board;

The port from which the same were last
shipped;

The name of the shipper; and

The name of the consignee; and

(B) Containing:

(1)

(ii)

(1ii)

A request that the department, by its duly
authorized agent, examine the articles
described;

An agreement by the importer to be
responsible for all costs, charges, or
expenses; and

A waiver of all claims for damages incident

to the inspection or the fumigation,

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 51

IR ARE N aAvaM



10

11

12

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 52

N
N
~3

H.B. NO.

oI
©ob
= NN

disinfection, quarantine, or destruction of
the articles, or any of them, as hereinafter
provided, if any treatment is deemed
necessary.

Failure or refusal to file a statement, including
the agreement and waiver, is a violation of this
section and may, in the discretion of the department,
be sufficient cause for‘refusing to permit the entry
of the articles into the State;

{6 Place of inspection. If, in the judgment of the

[taspeetors] department, it is deemed necessary or

advisable to move any of the above-mentioned articles,

or any portion thereof, to a transitional facility or

another place more suitable for inspection than the
pler, airport, or any other place where they are first

received or discharged, the [imspeetor] department is

authorized to do so[+] or order the importer or

importer's agent to do so. All costs and expenses

incident to the movement and transportation of the
articles to any other place shall be borne by the

importer or the importer's agent. If the importer,

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 52

LU



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 53

427
H.B. NO. +o2
C.D.1

importer's agent, or transportation company requests
inspection of sealed containers of the above-mentioned
articles at locations other than where the articles

are first received or discharged or a transitional

facility and the department determines that inspection
at the other place is appropriate, the department may
require payment of costs necessitated by these
inspections, including 6ve£time costs;

(7) Disinfection or guarantine. 1If, upon inspection,
any article received or brought into the State for the
purpose of debarkation or entry therein is found to be
infested or infected or there is reasonable cause to
presume that it is infested or infected and the
infestation or infection can, in the judgment of the
inspector, be eradicated, a treatment shall be given
[sweh] to the article. The treatment shall be at the
expense of the owner or the owner's agent, and the
treatment shall be as prescribed by the department.
The article shall be held in quarantine at the expense

of the owner or the owner's agent at a satisfactory

place approved by the department for a sufficient

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 53

LT



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 54

H.B. NO. #e:

S.D.2
CD.1

length of time to determine that eradication has been
accomplished. If the infestation or infection is of
the nature or extent that it cannot be effectively and
completely eradicated, or if it is a potentially
destructive pest or it is not widespread in the State,
or after treatment it is determined that the
infestation or infection is not completely eradicated,
or 1f the owner or the owner;s agent refuses to allow
the article to be treated or to be responsible for the
cost of treatment and quarantine, the article, or any
portion thereof, together with all packing and
containers, may, at the discretion of the inspector,
be destroyed or sent out of the State at the expense
of the owner or the owner's agent. The destruction or
exclusion shall not be made the basis of a claim
against the department or the inspector for damage or
loss incurred;

(8) Disposition. Upon completion of inspection,
either at the time of arrival or at any time

thereafter should any article be held for inspection,

treatment, or quarantine, the inspector shall affix to

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 54

R R A



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

H.B. NO. f

the article or the container or to the delivery order
in a conspicuous place thereon, a tag, label, or stamp
to indicate that the article has been inspected and
passed. This action shall constitute a permit to
bring the article into the State; and

[4363] (9) Ports of entry. None of the articles mentioned
in this section shall be allowed entry into the State
except through the airports andAseaports in the State
designated and approved by the board."

SECTION 29. Section 150A-5.5, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 1is
amended by amending subsection (b) to read as follows:

"(b) In legal effect, articles landed for the purpose of
inspection or quarantine shall be construed to be still outside
the State seeking entry, and shall not, in whole or in part, be
considered suitable for entry into the State unless a tag,
label, or stamp has been affixed to the article, its container,
or its delivery ocorder by the inspector as provided in section
[+56A—5¢9)+] 150A-5(8), except that articles quarantined in the
biocontrol containment facilities of the department or of other

government agencies engaged in joint projects with the

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 55

RS AM SR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

BN
N
~

e H.B. NO.

OwIT
ooo
NN

department may be released upon issuance of a permit approved by
the board."

SECTION 30. Section 150A-8, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 1is
amended to read as follows:

"§150A-8 Transporting in State. (a) Flora and fauna
specified by rules and regulations of the department shall not
be moved from one island to another island within the State or
from one locality to another on the same islénd except by a
permit issued by the department.

(b) The movement between the islands of the State of the

following articles, viz., nursery-stock, tree, shrub, herb,

vine, cut-flower, cut-foliage, cutting, graft, scion, bud, seed,

leaf, root, or rhizome; nut, fruit, or vegetable; grain, cereal,

or legume in the natural or raw state; moss, hay, straw, dry-

grass, or other forage; unmanufactured log, limb, or timber, or

any other plant-growth or plant-product, unprocessed or in the

raw state; soil; microorganisms; live bird, reptile, nematode,

insect, or any other animal in any stage of development (that is

in addition to the so-called domestic animal, the quarantine of

which is provided for in chapter 142); box, vehicle, baggage, or

any other container in which the articles have been transported

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO 56

H LT



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 57

H
N
~

H.B. NO.

ovzx
oDoo
- NN

or any packing material used in connection therewith shall be

made in the manner hereinafter set forth:

(1)

Inspectional requirements. Any person who receives

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

LR

for transport, or brings or causes movement between

the islands of the State, as freight, air freight,

baggage, as ship's stores, or otherwise, any of the

foregoing articles, shall ensure that the articles

comply with inspectional requirements pursuant to

rules and shall provide upon the inspector's request

the waybill number, container number, name and address

of the consignor, name and address of the consignee or

the consignee's agent, marks, number of packages,

description of contents of each package, and any other

information that may be necessary to inspect, locate,

or identify the same. If the articles are not

inspected pursuant to rules, the articles shall be

held in a manner that they will not spread or be

likely to spread any infestation or infection of

insects, diseases, or pests that may be present until

an inspection can be made by the inspector to

determine whether any article, or any portion thereof,




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 58

H.B. NO. #o:

S.D.2
C.D. 1

is infested or infected with insects or diseases, or

contains any pest. The department may adopt rules to

define inspectional requirements of specific articles.

Failure to obtain certification that the articles have

met the inspectional requirements prior to movement

between the islands of the State is a violation of

this section;

Labels. Each container in which any of the

(3)

above-mentioned articles are transported between the

islands of the State shall be plainly and legibly

marked, in a conspicuous manner and place, with the

name and address of the shipper or owner forwarding or

shipping the same, the name or mark of the person to

whom the same is forwarded or shipped or the person's

agent, and a statement of the contents of the

container. Failure to comply with this paragraph is a

violation cof this section;

Authority to inspect. Whenever the inspector has good

cause to believe that the provisions of this chapter

are being violated, the inspector shall:

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 58

BRI AR ARG



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 59

(A)

H.B. NO. ie:

SD.2
CD. 1

Enter and inspect any aircraft, vessel, or other

(B)

carrier at any time whether offshore, at the

pier, or at the airport, for the purpose of

determining whether any of the articles or pests

enumerated in this chapter or rules adopted

thereto, is present;

Enter into or upon any pier, warehouse, airport,

or any other place in the State where any of the

above-mentioned articles are moved or stored, for

the purpose of ascertaining, by inspection and

examination, whether or not any of the articles

is infested or infected with any pest or disease

or contaminated with soil or contains prohibited

plants or animals;

Inspect any baggage or personal effects of

(D)

passengers, officers, and crew members on

aircraft or vessels moving between the islands of

the State to ascertain if they contain any of the

articles or pests enumerated in this chapter;

Baggage or cargo inspection shall be made at the

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

LT T

discretion of the inspector, on the pier, vessel,

59



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 60 427
HIBI NOI H.D2

SD.2
CD. 1

or aircraft or in any guarantine or inspection

area; and

(E) Whenever the inspector has good cause to believe

that the provisions of this chapter are being

violated, the inspector shall require that any

box, package, suitcase, or any other container

carried as ship's stores, cargo, or otherwise by

any vessel or aircraft moving between the islands

of the State, be opened for inspection to

determine whether any article or pest prohibited

by this chapter or by rules adopted pursuant

thereto is present. It is a violation of this

section if any prohibited article, pest, or any

article infested with an insect or disease 1is

found;

(4) Place of inspection. The inspector shall make a

determination whether it is necessary or advisable to

move any of the above-mentioned articles, or any

portion thereof, to a place more suitable for

inspection than the pier, airport, or any other place

where they are initially presented for inspection.

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 60

LU B TR T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 61

()

H.B. NO. :o:

SD.2
C.D.1

All costs and expenses incident to the movement and

transportation of the articles to such place shall be

borne by the consignee or the consignee's agent;

Disinfection or quarantine. If, upon inspection, any

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

AR ARG e

article intended for movement between the islands of

the State is found to be infested or infected with an

insect, disease, or pest, or there is reasonable cause

to presume that it is infested or infected and the

infestation or infection can, in the judgment of the

inspector, be eradicated, a treatment shall be given

such article prior to movement between the islands of

the State. The treatment shall be at the expense of

the owner or the owner's agent, and the treatment

shall be as prescribed by the department. The article

shall be quarantined at the expense of the owner or

the owner's agent at a satisfactory place approved by

the department for a sufficient length of time to

determine that eradication has been accomplished. If

the infestation or infection is of such nature or

extent that it cannot be effectively and completely

eradicated, or after treatment it is determined that

61



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 62

(6)

H.B. NO. #s:

S.D.2
C.D. 1

the infestation or infection is not completely

eradicated, or if the owner or the owner's agent

refuses to allow the article to be treated or to be

responsible for the cost of treatment and guarantine,

the shipment, article, or any portion thereof,

together with all packing and containers, shall not be

certified for movement between the islands of the

State. An article infested or infected with an

insect, disease, or pest that is not widespread in the

State shall be destroyed at the expense of the owner

or the owner's agent; provided that no treatment

exists that would eradicate the insect, disease, or

pest to the satisfaction of the department. Such

destruction shall not be made the basis of a claim

against the department or the inspector for damage ox

loss incurred; and

Disposition. Upon completion of inspection, the

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

L

inspector shall conspicuously affix to the article,

container, or to the delivery order or other similar

document, a tag, label, or stamp to indicate that the

62



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

H.B. NO. :

S.D.2
CD.1

article has been inspected and can be moved between

the islands of the State."

SECTION 31. Section 150A-14, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended by amending subsections (b} through (g) to read as

follows:

"(b) Any person who violates section 150A-5 or 150A-F
shall be [guilty—eofapettymisdemeanor—and] fined [met] no less
than [$56] $100 and [me¥] no more than [$5+666-] $10,000. For a.
second {effemse]l violation committed within five years of a
prior [effemses] violation, the person may be fined [ge¥] no
less than [$256] $500 and ([m#e€t] no more than [$35+066-] $25,000.
{c) Any person who:

(1) Violates section 150A-6(3) or [i58A-644+] (4), or

owns or intentionally transports, possesses, harbors,
transfers, or causes the importation of any snake or
other prohibited animal seized under section

150a-7(b), or whose violation involves an animal that

is prohibited [e¥], a plant([+] that is restricted, or

an animal [+] or microorganism that is restricted(+] or

unlisted, without a permit, shall be guilty of a

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 63

B RAA A AR R R



10
11

12

14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

Page 64

(3)

(d)

H.B. NO. #e:

S.D.2
CD.1

misdemeanor and subject to a fine of [met] no less
than $5,000, but [me€] no more than $20,000;

Intentionally transports, transfers, possesses,

harbors, or imports with the intent to propagate,

sell, or release any animal that is prohibited [er—any

prant—animat], a plant that is restricted, or an

animal or microorganism that is restricted{+] or
unlisted, without a permit, shall be guilty of a class
C felony and subject to a fine of [mre€t] no less than
$50,000, but [met] no more than $200,000; or
Intentionally imports, possesses, harbors, transfers,
or transports, including through interisland or
intraisland movement, with the intent to propagate,
sell, or release, any pest designated by statute or
rule, unless otherwise allowed by law, shall be guilty
of a class C felony and subject to a fine of [met] no

less than $50,000, but [set] no more than $200,000.

Whenever a court sentences a person or organization

pursuant to subsection (a) or (c) for an offense [whieh] that

has resulted in the escape or establishment of any pest or

animal or microorganism that is restricted or unlisted and

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 64

RN R RV



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 65 427
H.B. NO. o

SD.2
CD. 1

caused the department to initiate a program to capture, control,

or eradicate that pest[+] or animal or microorganism that is

restricted or unlisted, the court shall also require that the

person or organization pay to the state general fund an amount
of money to be determined in the discretion of the court upon
advice of the department, based upon the cost of the development
and implementation of the program.

(e) The department may, at its discretion, refuse entry,
confiséate, or destroy any prohibited [ar¥tiedles—o¥], restricted,

or unlisted articles that are brought into the State without a

permit issued by the department, or order the return of any
plant, fruit, vegetable, or any other article infested with

insects, diseases, or pests to its place of origin or otherwise

dispose of it or such part thereof as may be necessary to comply
with this chapter. Any expense or loss in connection therewith
shall be borne by the owner or the owner's agent.

(£) Any person or organization that voluntarily surrenders
any pest, prohibited animal, or any restricted plant, animal, or
microorganism without a permit issued by the department, prior
to the initiation of any seizure action by the aepartment, shall

be exempt from the penalties of this section.

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO 65

N A R A E RN



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 66 427
H.B. NO. o2

SD.2
CD. 1

(g) For purposes of this section, "intent to propagate"
shall be presumed when the person in question is found to
possess, transfer, transport, harbor, or import:

(1) Any two or more animal specimens of the opposite sex

that are prohibited, unlisted, or restricted, without

a permit, or are a pest designated by statute or rule;
(2) Any three or more animal specimens of either sex that

are prohibited, unlisted, or restricted, without a

permit, or are a pest designated by statute or rule;

(3) Any plant that is restricted or microorganism that is

restricted or unlisted, having the inherent capability

to reproduce [and—that—is—restrieted], without a
permit; or
(4) Any specimen that is in the process of reproduction."
SECTION 32. Section 150A-54, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended by amending subsection (a) to read as follows:
"{a) The department shall set and impose charges for the
inspection, quarantine, and'eradication of pests in accordance

with this chapter and chapter 141[+]), including imposing charges

on an importer for using a transitional facility. The

department shall deposit the charges into the pest inspection,

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 66

AR T A AR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

H
N

OwIT
Oo0OoO~
= NN

e H.B. NO.

quarantine, and eradication fund established pursuant to
section 150A-4.5."
PART V

SECTION 33. The purpose of this part is to:

(1) Authorize the department of agriculture and
biosecurity to enter into agreements with private
industries for readiness and response to prevenﬁ and
address unwanted organisms; and

(2) Establish a pest dashboard.

SECTION 34. Chapter 150A, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is

amended by adding two new sections to part VI to be
appropriately designated and to read as follows:

"§150A-F Government-industry agreements for readiness and

response. (a) The department may enter into readiness and

response agreements with businesses and representatives of

businesses in the plant and animal industries of the State,

including businesses that grow, harvest, or produce animals and

plants or products from animals and plants.

{b) The agreements shall include:

(1) Readiness activities that:

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 67

L BT



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 68 427
H.B. NO. o
S.D.2
C.D.1

(A) Prevent unwanted organisms from entering the
State; and

(B) Detect unwanted organisms; and

(2) Response activities that:

(A) Facilitate the immediate investigation of an
unwanted organism after detection, including
timely reporting of the unwanted organism's
detection to the department;

(B) Minimize the impact of the unwanted organism on
natural and physical resources, human health, and
overseas market access for Hawaii products;

(C) Control the spread of an unwanted organism;

(D) Reduce the geographical distribution of an
unwanted organism;

(E) Eradicate the unwanted organism; and

(F) Include providing the department with relevant

information for posting to the pest dashboard

pursuant to section 141-3.5.

(c) A violation of an applicable readiness plan shall be

subject to penalties under section 150A-14.

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO

LN B

68



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 69 HB. NO. i

S.D.2
C.D.1

§150A-G Biosecurity and pest management plans. (a) Any

person, including any unit of state or local government, may

submit to the board a proposed biosecurity or pest management

plan. The proposed biosecurity or pest management plan shall

include:

{1) The name of the person or organization submitting the

proposed bioéecuri;x or pest management plan;

(2) The organism proposed to be classified as a pest;

provided that a proposed biosecurity or pest

management plan may encompass a category of organisms

proposed to be classified as pests;

(3) A description of the organism's adverse effects;

(4) A description of the region of the proposed plan or

whether the proposed plan will be implemented

statewide;

(5) The reason for the proposed plan;

(6) Objectives of the proposed plan;

(7) The principal measures to achieve the objectives and

alternative measures, if any;

(8) An allocation of the costs, if applicable;

(9) Proposed funding; and

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 69

R AR R R



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Page 70 427
H.B. NO. to:
S.D.2
C.D. 1
(10) Other information as required by the department.

(b) The board shall review the proposed plan, taking into

consideration:

(1) Whether the implementation of the proposed plan is
likely to eradicate or effectively manage the organism
proposed to be declared a pest;

(2) Whether the proposed plan is inconsistent with any
federal or state regquirement, activity, or policy;

(3) Any harmful effects of denying the proposed
biosecurity or pest management plan;

(4) Whether the benefits of the proposed plan would
outweigh the costs; and

(5) Other considerations established by the department.

(c) At a public hearing, the board shall approve the

proposed plan, deny the proposed plan, or approve the proposed

plan with modifications.

(d)

The department may negotiate with the person who

submitted the proposed plan or any other person before taking

action.

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO

G

70



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. %:

S.D.2
CD. 1

(e) The board shall publish each proposed plan it approves

and each proposed plan it approves with modifications. These

shall be known as "approved plans'".

(f) The department may enter into contracts to implement

approved plans.

{g) A pest management plan that was previously disapproved

may be resubmitted to the board upon the chairperson's

determination that the proposed management plan is significantly

different from the previously disapproved request."

SECTION 35. Section 141-3.5, Hawaill Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:
"§141-3.5 Control or eradication programs. (a) The

department of agriculture and biosecurity shall develop and

implement a detailed control or eradication program for any pest
designated in section 141-3, using the best available technology
in a manner consistent with state and federal law.

(b) The department of agriculture and biosecurity shall:

(1) Lead and coordinate the State's invasive pest control
and eradication biosecurity efforts;
(2) Engage in memorandums of understanding with

interagency partners and private organizations;

2025-3271 HB427 GD1 HMSO 71

G o0 R En A



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

21

Page 72

(c)

OnWITHA~
SN
00O~
= NN

H.B. NO.

Approve of memorandums of understanding with submitted
working plans to execute control and eradication
programs; and

Include in its annual report to the legislature
pursuant to section 150A-57 any memorandums of
understanding and partnerships pursuant to paragraphs
(2) and (3) to advance the State's invasive pest
control and eradication biosecurity efforts.

For any pest designated by emergency rule as provided

in section 141-3, the department of agriculture and biosecurity

shall implement an emergency program using the best available

technology in a manner consistent with state and federal law.

(d)

(1)

The department of agriculture(+] and biosecurity:

In conjunction with the department of land and natural
resources; department of health; department of
transportation; department of business, economic
development, and tourism; university of Hawaii system;
or state and privately organized agencies and
programs, as applicable, shall identify best practices
for the treatment of pests designated in section 141-

3;

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO 72

AT T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 73

(3)

(4)

H.B. NO. #:

S.D.2
CD.1

Shall post on its website [amy] infestation updates
and data, including [a&m¥] real-time geographic
information system map data, and best practices
identified for the treatment of pests designated in
section 141-3, as prioritized by the department(+].

No later than December 1, 2025, the department shall

establish a pest dashboard to provide real-time data

and information for treatment areas of pests

designated in section 141-3 to the public. The

dashboard shall be updated regularly and be hosted and

managed by the department;

Shall, along with contracted parties, document past
responses in the department's geographic information
system database; provided that the information shall
include date, location, names of individual
participants, organization, activities performed, and
presence and absence of pests; provided further that
the disclosure of information shall be under the
jurisdiction of the department; and

Shall, along with contracted parties, provide notice

to the department's pesticides branch prior to usage

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO
]

IR

_.

LT

73



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 74

(e)

E=N
N

OnI
cOO0O~
2NN

H.B. NO.

of pesticides in the course of controlling pests.
Upon receipt of notification, pesticide inspectors may
perform random inspections to ensure compliance with

pesticide laws and regulations. The department of

agriculture and biosecurity, department of land and

natural resources, and contracted parties pursuant to

section 150A-F shall regularly and timely post

treatment area information to the pest dashboard.

Any state department, agency, political subdivision,

or contracted party pursuant to section 150A-F that does not

provide information for the pest dashboard in compliance with

this section shall not receive or expend public funds. The

deputy chairperson for biosecurity shall be responsible for

ensuring compliance with this section.”

PART VI

SECTION 36. The legislature finds that treating plant care

components, which includes any quantity of wood chips, compost,

or filter socks, reduces potential pests and increases the

State's overall biosecurity. Act 197, Session Laws of Hawaii

2024 (Act 197), requires the department of agriculture to

certify plant care component treatments performed within the

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 74

RN AR A R




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. f:

S.D.2
C.D. 1

State. The purpose of this part is to expressly provide the
department of agriculture and biosecurity with the rulemaking
authority to adopt administrative rules and to assess
administrative penalties to fully effectuate Act 197.

SECTION 37. Section 141-2, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"§141-2 Rules. Subject to chapter 91, the department of

agriculture and biosecurity shall adopt, amend, and repeal rules

not inconsistent with law, for and concerning:
(1) The introduction, transportation, and propagation of

trees, shrubs, herbs, and other plants;

(2) The quarantine, inspection, fumigation, disinfection,

destruction, or exclusion, either upon introduction

into the State, or at any time or place within the

State, of any nursery-stock, tree, shrub, herb, vine,

cut-flower, cut-foliage, cutting, graft, scion, bud,

seed, leaf, root, or rhizome; any nut, fruit, or

vegetable; any grain, cereal, or legume in the natural

or raw state; any moss, hay, straw, dry-grass, or

other forage; any unmanufactured log, limb, or timber;

or any other plant growth or plant product unprocessed

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO

CUTHERAL ET

75



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 76

H.B. NO. #s:

SD.2
C.D. 1

or in the raw state; any sand, soil, or earth; any
live bird, reptile, insect, or other animal, in any
stage of development, that is in addition to the so-
called domestic animals, which are provided for in
section 142-2; and any box, barrel, crate, or other
containers in which the articles, substances, or
objects have been transported or contained, and any
packing material used in connection therewith, that is
or may be diseased or infested with insects or likely
to assist in the transmission or dissemination of any
insect or plant disease injurious, harmful, or
detrimental, or likely to become injurious, harmful,
or detrimental to the agricultural or horticultural
industries or the forests of the State, or that is or
may be in itself injurious, harmful, or detrimental to
the same; provided that included therein may be rules
governing the transportation of any of the articles,
substances, or objects enumerated above in this
section between different localities on any one of the

islands within the State;

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 76

A i



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 77

(4)

=N
N
~

H.B. NO.

O0x
000
- NN

The prohibition of importation into the State, from
any or all foreign countries or from other parts of
the United States, or the shipment from one island
within the State to another island therein, or the
transportation from one part or locality of any island
to another part or locality of the same island, of any
specific article, substance, or object or class of
articles, substances, or objects, among those
enumerated above in this section, that is diseased or
infested with insects or likely to assist in the
transmission or dissemination of any insect or plant
disease injurious, harmful, or detrimental or likely
to be injurious, harmful, or detrimental to the
agricultural or horticultural industries, or the
forests of the State, or that is or may be in itself
injurious, harmful, or detrimental to the same;

The preparation by cargo carriers of manifests of
cargo transported into the State or between islands of
the State and the submission of the manifests to the

department;

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 77

B e



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Page 78

(3)

(6)

(7)

S
N
~

H.B. NO.

OnI
OO0
NN

The establishment, maintenance, and enforcement of
compliance agreements with federal or state
departments of agriculture authorizing agriculture
inspectors from the state of origin in the case of
imports to the State, or state agricultural inspectors
in the case of state exports, to monitor the growing
and packing of plant commodities and any treatment
procedures to ensure compliance with quarantine laws,
and further authorizing the assessment of fees for
conducting inspections required under the compliance
agreement; [and]

The manner in which agricultural product promotion and
research activities may be undertaken, after
coordinating with the agribusiness development
corporation(=];

The establishment, fee schedule, appropriate

(8)

treatments, certification requirements, restrictions,

and enforcement of or for a plant care component

_program; and

Any other purpose within this part.

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 78

T A A R e



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

E
N
~

e H.B. NO.

00Ix
OO0
NN

All rules adopted under this section shall have the force
and effect of law.™"

SECTION 38. Section 141-18, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is
amended to read as follows:

"[4]18§141-18[}] Plant care components; fumigation;
treatment; certification; fees; restrictions. (a) The

department of agriculture[+] and biosecurity:

(1) Shall certify plant care component treatments
performed within the State:;

(2) May certify and permit entities to conduct plant care
component treatments before shipment; and

(3) Shall deposit any fees collected for certifications of
plant care component treatment pursuant to section
150A-21 into the pest inspection, quarantine, and
eradication fund established pursuant to section
150A-4.5.

(b) No person shall distribute within the State any plant

care component that originated outside the State, unless [the]:

(1) The plant care component was subject to a treatment

before entering the State; or

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 79

A



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

- 17

18

19

20

21

H.B. NO. :

S.D.2
CD. 1

(2 The plant care component has been treated immediately

after [emtering) arriving in the State, as certified

by the department of agriculture(-=] and biosecurity.

(c) No person shall transport any plant care component:
{1) Between the islands of the State; or
(2) From a location within the State to a location outside
the State,
without prior certification from the department of agriculture

and biosecurity that the component has been treated pursuant to

this section; provided that the component shall be stored in a
manner to prohibit infestation post-treatment.

(d) Any person who violates any provision of this section

or rules adopted under this section may be assessed an

administrative penalty by the board of not more than $10,000 for

each offense. No administrative penalty shall be assessed

unless the person charged has been given notice and an

opportunity for a hearing on the specific charge. The

administrative penalty and any proposed action contained in the

notice of finding of violation shall become a final order

unless, within twenty days of receipt of the notice, the person

or persons charged make a written request for a hearing. 1In

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 80

RN SRR A AR



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

N
€
~

e H.B. NO.

oox
o0o
= NN

determining the amount of penalty, the board shall consider the

appropriateness of the penalty to the size of the business of

the person charged, the effect on the person's ability to

continue business, and the gravity of the violation.

{e) In case of inability to collect the administrative

penalty or failure of any person to pay all or a portion of the

administrative penalty as the board may determine, the board

shall refer the matter to the attorney general, who shall

recover the amount by action in the appropriate court. For any

judicial proceeding to recover the administrative penalty

imposed, the attorney general need only show that notice was

given, a hearing was held or the time granted for requesting a

hearing has expired without such a request, the administrative

penalty was imposed, and the penalty remains unpaid.

(f) When construing and enforcing this section, the act,

omission, or failure of any officer, agent, or other person

acting for or employed by any person shall in every case be also

deemed to be the act, omission, or failure of such person as

well as that of the person employed.

[4+eh-] (g) For the purposes of this section:

"Board" means board of agriculture and biosecurity.

2025-3271 HB427 CDl1 HMSO 81

L T



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 82 427
H.B. NO. o

S.D.2
C.D.1

"Filter sock" means a mesh tube that contains organic plant
material, which is used for erosion control.

"Person" means an individual, firm, corporation,

association, or partnership or any organized group of persons

whether incorporated or not.

"Plant care component" or "component" means any quantity of

wood chips{+] or compost{+] that is used in the propagation of

plants or in a filter [seeks<] sock.

"Treat™ or "treatment"” means fumigation or heat treatment."
PART VII

SECTION 39. All rights, powers, functions, and duties of
the Hawaii invasive species council are transferred from the
department of land and natural resources to the department of
agriculture and biosecurity.

All officers and employees whose functions are transferred
by this Act shall be transferred with their functions and shall
continue to perform their regular duties upon their transfer,
subject to the state personnel laws and this Act.

No officer or employee of the State having tenure shall
suffer any loss of salary, seniority, prior service credit,

vacation, sick leave, or other employee benefit or privilege as

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMS 82

MR R TR A



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 83 427
H.B. NO. b

S.D.2
CD. 1

a consequence of this Act, and such officer or employee may be
transferred or appointed to a civil service position without the
necessity of examination; provided that the officer or employee
possesses the minimum gqualifications for the position to which
transferred or appointed; and provided that subsequent changes
in status may be made pursuant to applicable civil service and
compensation laws.

An.officer or employee of the State who does not have
tenure and who may be transferred or appointed to a civil
service position as a consequence of this Act shall become a
civil service employee without the loss of salary, seniority,
prior service credit, vacation, sick leave, or other employee
benefits or privileges and without the necessity of examination;
provided that such officer or employee possesses the minimum
qualifications for the position to which transferred or
appointed.

If an office or position held by an officer or employee
having tenure is abolished, the officer or employee shall not
thereby be separated from public employment, but shall remain in
the employment of the State with the same pay and classification

and shall be transferred to some other office or position for

2025-3271 HB427 CD1l HMSO 83

TR LR



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

Page 84 427
H.B. NO. o

SD.2
CD.1

which the officer or employee is eligible under the personnel
laws of the State as determined by the head of the department or
the governor.

SECTION 40. All appropriations, records, equipment,
machines, files, supplies, contracts, books,'papers, documents,
maps, and other personal property heretofore made, used,
acquired, or held by the department of land and natural
resources felating to the functions of the Hawaii invasive
special council that are transferred to the department of
agriculture and biosecurity shall be transferred with the
functions to which they relate.

PART VIII

SECTION 41. There is appropriated out of the general
revenues of the State of Hawaii the sum of $4,250,000 or much
thereof as may be necessary for fiscal year 2025-2026 for the
operations of the Hawaii invasive species council.

The sum appropriated shall be expended by the department of
land and natural resocurces for the purposes of this Act.

SECTION 42. There is appropriated out of the general

revenues of the State of Hawaii the sum of $4,250,000 or so much

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMSO 84

ARSI RS ARG



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

oOwThH
oOoO~
- NN

e H.B. NO.

thereof as may be necessary for fiscal year 2026-2027 for the
operations of the Hawaii invasive species council.

The sum appropriated shall be expended by the department of
agriculture and biosecurity for the purposes of this Act.

SECTION 43. There is appropriated out of the general
revenues of the State of Hawaii the sum of $500,000 or much
thereof as may be necessary for the fiscal year 2025-2026 and
the same suonr so much thereof as may be necessary for fiscal
year 2026-2027 for the operations of the Hawaii Ant Lab.

The sums appropriated shall be expended by the department
of land and natural resources for the purposes of this Act.

SECTION 44. There is appropriated out of the general
revenues of the State of Hawaii the sum of $500,000 or so much
thereof as may be necessary for fiscal year 2025-2026 and the
same sum or so much thereof as may be necessary for fiscal year
2026-2027 for the operations of the coconut rhinoceros beetle
response under the university of Hawaii.

The sums appropriated shall be expended by the university
of Hawaii for the purposes of this Act.

PART IX

2025-3271 HB427 CDl HMS 85

OGRS



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

Page 86

H.B. NO. #o:

D.2
.D. 1

SECTION 45. 1In codifying the new sections added by

sections 26 and 34 of this Act, the revisor of statutes shall

substitute appropriate section numbers for the letters used in

designating the new sections in this Act.

SECTION 46.

and stricken. New statutory material is underscored.

SECTION 47. This Act shall take effect as follows:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(3)

Part i shall take effect upon approval of this Act;
provided that if part I takes effect before June 30,
2025, the amendments made to section 167-6, Hawaii
Revised Statutes, by section 18 of this Act shall not
be repealed when that section is repealed and
reenacted on June 30, 2025, pursuant to Act 223,
Session Laws of Hawaii 2014;

Part II shall take effect on Januvary 1, 2027;

Part III and sections 25, 26, 27, and 32 shall take
effect on January 1, 2028;

Sections 30 and 31 and parts V and VIII shall take
effect on July 1, 2025;

Part VI shall take effect upon approval of this Act;

Part VII shall take effect on January 1, 2030; and

2025~3271 HB427 CDl HMSO

LT

Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed

86



H.B. NO.

OwI
UoD
a NN

(7) Sections 28 and 29 and Part IX shall take effect upon

approval of this Act.

2025-3271 HB427 CD1 HMSO 87

Ll L



N
N
-~

H.B. NO.

ooT
OO0
NN

APPROVED this 27th day of June , 2025

@A e

GOVERNOR OF THE STATE OF HAWAII



HB No. 427, HD 2,SD 2,CD 1
THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES OF THE STATE OF HAWAII
Date: April 30, 2025
Honolulu, Hawaii
We hereby certify that the above-referenced Bill on this day passed Final Reading in the

House of Representatives of the Thirty-Third Legislature of the State of Hawaii, Regular Session

Vs K. N —

Nadine K. Nakamura
Speaker
House of Representatives

e L L=
Brian L. Takeshita

Chief Clerk
House of Representatives

0f 2025.



H.B.No. 427,H.D.2,S.D.2,CD. 1

THE SENATE OF THE STATE OF HAWAI‘I

Date: April 30, 2025
Honolulu, Hawai‘i 96813

We hereby certify that the foregoing Bill this day passed Final Reading in the Senate

of the Thirty-Third Legislature of the State of Hawai‘i, Regular Session of 2025.

M%

W—f

Clerk of the Senate

220



